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Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

YEAR IN REVIEW - From the CEO’s Desk

Providing a reliable and quality power supply to our customers were the top most priority
during the year. The natural calamities continued to impact our network. Damages to the
network system were more during the peak monsoon season. Restoration works were
difficult in some cases due to the extent of the damages coupled with inaccessibility to the
sites. Our operation and maintenance team worked tirelessly in difficult conditions to
minimize the outage durations. The hard work of our field employees, especially during
challenging and harsh conditions are highly appreciated.

Safety continues to be at the forefront of our operations. We always take care and work with
responsibility for protecting our employees, our community and the environment in which
we work and we are committed to continually improve the safety of our employees and the
public. Adherence to safety protocols and standards are monitored by our Safety Team.
There have been no work related accidents of the employees from the network system this
year and our employees have done a commendable work during the year for achieving a
“ZERO” accident, a milestone reflecting the company’s strong safety culture. Employees are
reminded now and then not to compromise on safety and reliable power supply should not
be at the expense of safety of employees.

The demand for electricity has been growing primarily driven by the socio-economic
development of the country. The industrial development has contributed to most of the load
growth. The coincidental peak demand was 1,026.44 MW at 18:36:16 on December 25, 2024,
up from 955.51 MW at 18:00 on December 30, 2023. The demand for the summer were met
from domestic generation and during the lean season, the energy was imported from India.

The company has taken up grid expansion programs to ensure that the network system is
adequate to cater to the increased loads. Significant planning work for transmission
augmentation works were carried out for system strengthening and for evacuation of power
from the Generating stations. A comprehensive Transmission system aligning with the
Renewable Energy Development Roadmap - 2024 (REDR - 2024) for the power evacuation
from the Hydro Power Projects and Solar Projects in the pipeline is being planned in close
coordination with the Department of Energy, MoENR, and Druk Green Power Corporation.
All works incorporate technologies to modernize the grid aligning with the evolving
technology in the sector. At the distribution level, Distribution Transformer metering has
been completed for conventional transformer. System strengthening and feeder automations
works were being continued.
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On the human capacity development front, BPC stands committed for continuous inclusive
career development of its employees, enhancing work culture and values, team building,
fostering a positive work environment and to develop a sense of belonging to the company.
Structured onboarding program for the new recruits, reward and recognizing outstanding
employees, allowing participation in sports were some of the initiatives undertaken to foster
positive work environment. Employees participated in both inhouse and ex-country
programs.

The year has not been without operational challenges. The reliability and quality power
supply has always been the single biggest challenge that the company faces today. Due to the
various initiatives taken by the company over the years, observed a marked improvement in
the reliability indices. To resolve the Right of Ways, the company is assessing the corridors
affected by the network system. In discussion with the relevant stakeholders, the Right of
Ways is expected to be addressed.

Our electrical systems run through the thick forests and steep mountains. These conditions
especially during the dry seasons present significant challenges for the network increasing
the risk of fires. The company has taken up fire resilience technical interventions plans so
that our system is protected from fire hazards and that the system do not cause fire hazards.
Maintaining adequate Right of way is seen as the most important measure for mitigating fire
hazards and the company is according topmost priority to maintain the Right of Ways. We
are working very closely with relevant stakeholders on this aspect.

The employee attrition rate decreased to 3.15% from 8.98% from the previous year’s. The
company recruited to fill all the critical vacant positions to avoid any disruptions in its
operations. Seventy-three employees were recruited during the year. One of the critical
measures to address the attrition was to understand the reasons for employees leaving the
company by conducing exit interviews. The reasons were many and management
implemented those, which were necessary.

The Druk Holding & Investments (DHI) has taken numerous reform measures aimed to
enhanse governance structure and increase operational efficiency. This has enabled
operating activities to be agile enabling build a robust governance processes facilitating to
provide swift decision-making and respond to emergency events.

On the business prospects, there is an increased demand for electricity. The development of
the power infrastructures to cater to the requirements of Industrial Park at Samtse will be
completed in mid 2025 with capacity availability of 300 MW. BPC is proactively engaged in
planning transmission access to the generating plants in the planning stage. These
infrastructures will strengthen and make the network system robust and contribute to
revenue growth ensuring stability and sustainability of the company.
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Moving ahead, BPC will continue to support, collaborate and build trust with customers and
all the relevant stakeholders. Emphasis and focus will be made on network resilience, to
ensure a reliable and safe power supply while maintaining the safety of employees and all
those associated with BPC.

Finally, [ would also like to express my sincere gratitude to the Shareholders and the Board
for their continued support and guidance. I would also like to recognize the hard and
dedicated efforts put in by every employee during the year. I look forward to the same
commitment and we must work collectively as one team with a shared purposes to sustaining
our effort in providing efficient delivery of services against all odds.

/]

(Sonam Tobjey)
Chief Executive Officer
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On 1st July 2002, Bhutan Power Corporation Limited (BPC), a state-owned

Company Profile (About BPC)

electricutility company was established and incorporated under the Companies
Act of the Kingdom of Bhutan. The ownership of BPC was transferred to Druk
Holding and Investments Limited (DHI), the commercial arm of the Royal
Government of Bhutan in 2007.
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BPC is the only company responsible for the transmission and distribution
of electricity across the country and the broad mandates are to transmit,
distribute, and supply electricity within the country, wheel surplus electricity
for export, and build electrical network infrastructure for system expansion.
BPC operates and maintains the Optical Ground Wire (OPGW) networks strung
on its transmission lines and All - Dielectric Self-Supporting (ADSS) cables on
the distribution lines covering all gewogs on behalf of the GovTech Agency,
Royal Government of Bhutan. Some sections of the OPGW are owned by BPC.

Destination Statement
To contribute Nu. 5,700 million as annual dividend

to DHI by 2030

Our Mission Our Vision

To provide affordable, adequate, To be an innovative and efficient

reliable, and quality electricity power utility driving the socio-
economic transformation of

Bhutan.

services to customers.

Our Culture & Value

Integrity, mutual respect for
each other, professionalism,
accountability, care, and “Tha

Dhamtse”.
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Our Culture & Core Value

The values that BPC believed in and reinforces are Integrity, Mutual Respect,
Professionalism, Accountability, Care, and Tha Damtse (IMPACT). The values
are as described below:

Integrity:  Be honest, ethical, trustworthy, and consistent in
words and actions and do the right things even when no one is

watching.

e Mutual Respect:  Honor and respect each other, support each
other, and work together as a team.

AR Professionalism: Be professionally driven to be innovative,

‘% adaptive to change, maintain quality and standards and service
excellence through proper planning and organizing.

Accountability: Take accountability and responsibility for all
gw{} out actions, think of the con-sequences before taking any action,
@ 'NI, adopt fairness and transparency in all operation.

Care: Provide employees with a sage and conducive

\'/ working environment, en-sure public safety, excel in customer

service, and work towards protecting and reserving envi-ronment

The Damtse: Remain loyal, dedicated and committed to
achieving the Company’s vision and mission, have strong allegiance
to the Company identity and values and always work to uplift the
public image of BPC and the Country at large.



Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

Organizational Chart

Board Audit &
Risk Committee

Board

Chief
Company e I Internal

Executive e
Secretary Officer Audit Unit

Legal Unit

Engineering & Corporate

Research Division St.ra}t('egy
Division

Norbugang
Industrial Park
Project Office

: Finance & Support
Construction Procurement Accounts Services

Division Division Division Division

. . Human
Construction Material General Resources

Section Section Finance Management

Section Section

Contract
Management
Section

Stores Budget & Admin &

Sections (2) Treasury Employee
Section Relation Section

Environment, Corporate Information &
GIS & Surve J Accounts Communication
¥ Section Technology Section

10



Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

Distribution &
Customer
Services Division

Distribution
Operation
Maintenance &
Planning Section

Customer
Services
Section

Electricity
Services
Divisions (19)

Smart Grid
Section

11

Fibre Network
Section

Transmission

Operation &

Maintenance
Division

Transmission
Control Centre

Transmission
Operation,
Maintenance &
Planning Section

Transmission
Operation &
Maintenance
Sections (8)




Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Ms. Kesang Deki, Chairperson

Ms. Kesang Deki is the Cabinet Secretary for the Royal Government of
Bhutan, appointed in October 2022, where she also chairs the Committee
of 4 Coordinating Secretaries and serves as Coordinating Secretary for the
Governance Cluster. She holds a Master of Public Finance, Income Tax, and
Finance from the National Graduate Institute for Policy Studies in Tokyo,
Japan. Her extensive public service career encompasses leadership across
key government portfolios, including Secretary of the Ministry of Finance
(2021-2022), Director-General of the Department of National Properties
(2019-2021), and a five-year tenure as Commissioner at the Royal Civil Service Commission (2014-
2019) by appointment of His Majesty the King. Her foundational experience in finance includes
serving as Collector (Head) of the Income Tax Division (2010-2014) and earlier roles in revenue and
customs administration since 1993.

2. Mr. Karma P. Dorji

Mr. Karma P. Dorjiis the Director General of the Department of
Energy, Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources. He received his
Master's in International Development Technology from the State
University of California, USA. He served as a Chief Engineer, DHPS,
before assuming the current post. He serves as a Non-Independent
Director on the BPC Board.

3. Mr. Kezang Jamtsho

Mr. Kezang Jamtsho is the present Chief Executive of State Mining
Corporation Ltd. He holds a Master’s degree in Irrigation Engineering
and Management from the Asian Institute of Technology, Bangkok,
Thailand, and a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering from Regional
Engineering College, Silchar, India. He has served in various capacities
within the Ministry of Agriculture and Forests and completed his tenure
as the Commissioner of the Anti-Corruption Commission of Bhutan.

12
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4, Mr. Passang Dorji

Passang Dorji is the CEO and an investor in Dawa Hospitality Private Limited.
He is also the Honorary Consul of Finland to Bhutan. He has served as a Board
Director in many public companies such as Bhutan National Bank, Drukair
Corporation, Bhutan Telecom, Bank of Bhutan, and State Trading Corporation
of Bhutan. He was also the Director, Department of Investments, Druk Holding
and Investment, till 2018. He has a Master's in Business Administration and a
Bachelor of Civil Engineering.

5. Mr. Chencho T Namgay

Mr. Chencho T. Namgay is the Director of the Department of Investments,
overseeing portfolio management in global financial markets, evolving asset
classes, and Business Development at DHI. He has a Master's in Business
Administration and an undergraduate degree in Technology (Electrical &
Electronics).

Mr. Sonam Tobgay

Mr. Sonam Tobgay currently serves as an Independent Director on the BPC
Board. He holds a Postgraduate Diploma in Survey Engineering and a Master of
Business Administration from the University of Canberra. Over the course of his
career, he has served in key roles within the National Land Commission, the
National Cadastral Resurvey Program, and Phuentsholing Thromde. Currently,
he holds the position of Chief Survey Engineer at Thimphu Thromde.

Mr. Sonam Tobjey

Mr. Sonam Tobjey is the Chief Executive Officer of Bhutan Power Corporation
Limited, the position he assumed since 23rd August 2018. He worked in the
company since 2002 and held various positions in the Finance Department.
The last post being the Director of Finance. Because of his long association
with the company and being the senior management member for most part of
his career in the company, he brings in an in-depth professional experience
and management skills in various functional aspects of the Company. He also
served as the Board of Director of the Bank of Bhutan Limited, erstwhile Wood
Craft Center and the Royal Insurance Corporation of Bhutan Limited. He
serves as the Non-Independent Executive Director of BPC Board. He obtained
his Masters of Commence Degree in Accountancy from University of
Canberra, Australia in December 1995 and Bachelor of Commerce (Hons)
Degree from Shri Ram College of Commerce, University of New Delhi, India in
June 1989.
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Management Team

Ms. Dechen Dema,
Director,
Transmission
Department

Mr. Sonam Tobjey,
CEO, BPC

Mr. Thinley Gyeltshen, Mr. Sangay Tenzin,
Director, Director,
Distribution Construction &
Department Procurement
Department
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Director,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1. Introduction

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Bhutan Power Corporation Limited (BPC), [ am
delighted to present this report on the company's performance from January 1, 2024, to
December 31, 2024. This report is prepared in accordance with Sections 177 and 178 of the
Companies Act of Bhutan 2016. The report is presented to our shareholders, Druk Holding
and Investments Limited (DHI), and other relevant stakeholders.

2. Overall System Performance

The country's coincidental peak demand increased to 1,026.44 MW at 18:36:16 on December
25,2024, from 955.51 MW at 18:00 on December 30, 2023. The increase in the domestic load
was largely driven by the socio-economic development of the country, with the industrial
development contributing to the load growth. The industrial load today constitutes around
88.47% of the total domestic load. On the customer growth, the number of customers for the
year increased to 255,517 from 243,285 in 2023.

The domestic load growth culminated in an energy sale of 7,256.10 MU in the year as
compared to 5,689.74 MU in 2023, an increase of about 27.533%. The energy exported to
India increased to 5,456.44 MU from 5,135.06 MU in 2023 due to the increase in domestic
generation with the commissioning of the Nikachhu Hydropower Unit 2 and Unit 1 on
January 25, 2024, and February 8, 2024, respectively.

The energy sold during the year was met by purchasing 6,128.12 million Units (MU) of
energy from DGPC, 3.23 MU from DSP Solar Initiative (DSP-SI), and 1,406.38 MU from the
Indian Energy Exchange (IEX). The energy imports were made during the lean generation
period only from January to May and November to December 2024. In comparison, the
domestic load for the previous year was met by purchasing 5,323.73 MU of energy from
DGPC, 0.62 MU from DSP Solar Initiative (DSP-SI), and 597.68 MU through imports from IEX.

Out of the total energy of 13,357.08 MU (Ex-Bus energy of generating plants + actual import
from India + EG + DSP) injected into the system, 13,070.08 MU (domestic sales + actual
export to India) was consumed. This translates to a global energy loss, including wheeling,
of 2.15% for the year compared to 2.14% in the previous year. The marginal increase in the
loss was due to the high volume of energy injected into the system as compared to the
previous year.

With the domestic load surpassing the generation during the lean season, the energy is
imported from India. The unbalanced demand-supply situation necessitating power import
from India requires compliance with the Indian Deviation Settlement Mechanism (DSM), a
disciplinary tool which stipulates that the customers and generating entities must adhere to

16
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the schedules. The DSM modality between the Royal Government of Bhutan (RGoB) and the
Government of India (GOI) was signed to be effective from 1st May 2024. Subsequently, the
Grid Discipline Mechanism (GDM) was implemented for the domestic market in Bhutan from
1st June 2024. The Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for the operationalization of GDM
were also prepared. Energy accounting therefore has become more challenging.

The Bhutan Power System Operator (BPSO) coordinates and monitors the load flow within
the system. With the implementation of GDM, the monitoring of the adherence to schedules,
preparing and issuing the statement of charges for deviation, and maintaining the deviation
pool account is carried out by BPSO.

The auditors have issued an unqualified audit report for the year. Their observations have
been reported in the Management Report and the Management Appraisal Report.

3. The State of the Company’s Affairs

3.1 Independent Auditor’s Report
The auditors have issued an unqualified audit report for the year. Their observations have
been reported in the Management Report and the Management Appraisal Report.

3.2 Financial Position
The key financial performance of the company for the year as compared to the
previous year is summarized in the tables below.

SL Item Description Year 2024 (Nu. in Year 2023 (Nu. in

No. million) million)

1 Total value of assets of the 46,744.60 43,549.80
company

2 Net worth of the Company 16,741.85 16,087.09

3 Gross Asset addition 3,192.90 3,281.98

3.3 Results of Operation

Sl. Item Description Year 2024 (Nu. Year 2023 (Nu. Percentage
No. in million) in million) change (%)
1 Total Revenue 25,098.65 20,208.50 19.48
2 Electricity Revenue 22,973.61 16,234.65 29.33
2 Wheeling Revenue 1,595.34 1318.53 17.35
3 Construction Contracts 195.22 2,287.41 -1071.71

4 Total Expenditure 22,103.35 18,386.75 16.81

17
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5  Net Profit After Tax 1,708.59 1,145.68 32.95

6  The Basic as well as Diluted 152.59 102.29 32.96
Earnings Per Share

The BPC's total revenue increased in the financial year due to an increase in the revenue
from electricity sales. The income from the wheeling of energy has also increased. However,
the income from construction contracts has decreased compared to 2023, as the major
works have been completed. The company's Profit After Tax (PAT) increased primarily due
to the increase in energy sales.

BPC applied for an interim tariff revision to the Electricity Regulatory Authority (ERA) due
to the adverse impact of the current tariff effective from September 1, 2022, till June 30,
2025, on the financial performance of BPC due to higher payment of the purchase of power
from the approved rate. The ERA allowed recovery for the year 2024-2025 of Nu. 648.12
million from HV/MV customers, but to reduce the burden of retrospective adjustment to
consumers, Nu.324.06 million was billed to HV/MV customers by raising supplementary
bills based on domestic energy consumption. The recovery was allowed by approving the
revision of energy charges to Nu.1.9/kWh from Nu.1.60/kWh for HV and MV customers,
which was effective from November 2024 till June 2025.

3.4 Transfer to Reserves

As per the company's asset risk mitigation policy, Nu. 12.77 million, equivalent to 0.4% of
the Nu. 3,192.90 million of the total assets added during the year is proposed to be kept aside
as the Company's Asset Replacement Reserve. The cumulative amount under this reserve
stands at Nu. 225.16 million.

3.5 Recommendation for Payment of Dividend

During the 179th Board meeting, held on 05 march, 2025, the Board recommended a
dividend of Nu.1, 538 million, equivalent to 90% of the Profit after Tax for the year 2024. In
the year 2023, the dividend declared and paid was Nu. 1,057.34 millions.

4. Corporate Governance

The management and governance of the Company are guided by the Companies Act of
Bhutan 2016, the Corporate Governance Code issued by the DHI, and other relevant laws of
the country. The company is managed by the BPC Board consisting of seven Board Directors,
including the Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer. During the year, the company
conducted eight board meetings to deliberate and provide strategic guidance to the
management and the company. The Board is assisted by the Board sub-committees in the
Board's decision-making. The Board Audit and Risk Committee (BARC) conducted seven
meetings, the Board Tender and Technical Committee (BTTC) convened five meetings, and
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year. The company complied with the minimum requirement to hold board meetings as
prescribed by section 146 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016.

The Risk Oversight functions and adequacy of the Internal Control Systems are reviewed and
monitored by the Board Audit and Risk Committee (BARC). The independent Internal Audit
conducts regular reviews of the adequacy of the internal control mechanism across the
company and reports its findings to the BARC for corrective actions. The risk function of the
Board is supported by the Strategy Division of the company. The department identifies key
risks with the potential for significant adverse impact on the functioning and financial
performance of the company. Continuous measures are being implemented to mitigate the
identified risks effectively. Risk management is performed under the DHI's risk framework.
The company reviews and conducts risk assessments quarterly, with adoption and
implementation in accordance with the risk framework.

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The company makes CSR contributions in accordance with the 2013 CSR framework issued
by the DHI. In 2024, BPC contributed Nu. 1,970,426 for various social causes for youth-
related activities, contributions to Civil Organizations, Printing and Publications, and for
various religious activities. The major contribution is the copper scraps, amounting to Nu.
700,000 to the Dharma Arts to promote local businesses.

6. Network Expansion
The company executed several expansions and upgradation of the transmission and
distribution network as detailed below:

6.1 Transmission System

The major Transmission Line infrastructure that was enhanced in 2024 was the successful
commissioning of a 220 kV D/C line from Chukha to Jamjee on 17th February 2024. With this
connection, the Transmission Network system in the western region has been significantly
strengthened, ensuring increased power supply capacities and enhancing power stability in
the western region. To align with the National developmental priorities, the power supply
for Nobugang Industrial Park (NIP) in Samtse was initiated. The electrical work for the
400/220/66/33 kV was awarded on 14th October 2023, and Civil works were awarded on
14th December 2023. The Transmission line was awarded on 14th October 2023. The 66 kV
GIS and 66 kV transmission line, along with the 220 kV and 66 kV GIS substation at NIP,
Samtse, were commissioned on 28th September 2024 and 31st December 2024,
respectively, making 200 MVA of power available for the industrial park. The 400 kV system
is scheduled for commissioning in the 2nd quarter of 2025. The upgradation of 2x5 MVA to
2x50 MVA, 66/33 kV with the conversion of 33kV panels to GIS at the Damdum substation
was initiated, and 90% of the work was completed during the year. The works shall be
completed within the 2nd quarter of 2025.
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To address the recurrent power reliability issue of Panbang Dungkhag, the construction of
132/33 kV GIS was initiated during the year. The substation is scheduled to be commissioned
by October 2025.

For evacuation of power from small hydropower projects, BPC successfully completed and
made ready the 132 kV transmission line for the Burgangchu Hydro Power Plant at
Zhemgang and a 132 kV transmission line for the Yungichu Hydro Power Plant at Lhuntse.
For the Suchu Hydro Power Plan at Haa, the construction of 66 kV transmission lines is in
progress. For the evacuation of solar power from Wobthang, the walk-on line route survey
for the 132 kV Transmission line was completed in July 2024, and for the Khorlochu power
evacuation, the survey route for the 400 kV transmission line was finalized in October 2024.
The EIA for the construction of the 132 kV Transmission Line for evacuation of power from
the Jomori Hydro Power Project and the 66 kV Transmission line for evacuation of power
from the Druk Bindu Hydro Power Project was completed in June 2024 in collaboration with
the JICA Team.

For the evacuation plan of power from other Hydro Power Projects and Solar Projects in the
pipeline, BPC is working in close coordination with the Department of Energy, MoNER, and
Druk Green Power Corporation to plan a comprehensive Transmission system aligning the
Renewable Development Energy Roadmabp.

Considering the requirement for robust and strong infrastructure to support the
development of the upcoming Gelephu Mindfulness City (GMC), BPC prepared a preliminary
conceptual plan for a 220 kV ring network of transmission infrastructure with four 220/33
kV substations at strategic locations covering the area of the city. The 220 kV ring network
will provide a reliable and continuous power supply and the four transmission substations
will be strategically located to efficiently distribute power. The distribution network will be
prepared subsequently to cater to the load centers as per the Masterplan of GMC.

The other key initiatives carried out to strengthen and enhance the stability and reliability
of the Chukha-Birpara transmission line, which plays a vital role in the export-import of
power between Bhutan and India. By re-aligning the two transmission towers, the stability
of the towers was ensured, which was necessary to avoid any potential damage or disruption
in the transmission line, which was under stress due to sliding foundations. This not only
prevented potential power disruptions but ensured the sustainability of vital power
transmission networks and a continuous and secure flow of electricity, which is critical for
Bhutan's power exports and as well as imports.

Similarly, a joint assessment for Power Supply Augmentation for Pasakha Industrial Estate
was carried out this year considering the power reliability to Industrial customers in the
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Estate. The recommended investments are planned to be implemented from 2025 onwards.
To meet the demand of Motanga Industrial Estate, a 1x15MVA, 132/33kV transformer was
commissioned.

With the commissioning of the 118 MW Nikachu Hydro Power Plant, BPC took over the
associated transmission system (ATS). BPC also took over the 3 x 10/12.5 MVA Gewathang
substation from Punatsangchu Hydroelectric Project Authority-1I since the substation is
largely used for domestic supply purposes, although initially built for construction power
supply power to PHPA-I.

The first Regional Control Centre (RCC) to transform future operations with real-time
operational insights was commissioned in the Olakha substation on December 23, 2024. As
of now, the Dechencholing, Jemina, and Olakha substations are integrated with RCC. In the
future, the RCC will remotely manage all substations in the western region for real-time
monitoring and enhancing operational efficiency. As a part of the smart grid master plan,
the SCADA installation at the Nganglam substation and the newly commissioned Jamtsholing
substation were completed, enabling automated control and real-time monitoring.

BPC is implementing a Tele-protection system project through BPSO. The supply of the
equipment is completed in 2024, and the testing & commissioning will be completed by
2025.

As a part of the DHI initiative to leverage innovation and technology, BPC also carried out
drone surveillance of transmission lines in the Chelela, Jamjee, Tanalung, Olakha, and Kabisa
areas in collaboration with DHI with the objective of enhancing the power line inspection.
BPC has been maintaining the service availability of the National Fiber backbone
connectivity to 100% in 2024. Around 34 km of ADSS lines of Soe and Lingzhi were added
for O&M by BPC in 2024. Following the completion of the new 220kV Chukha-Jamjee
transmission line and 220kV GIS at Jamjee, the Chumdo ICT colocation shelter was
decommissioned, and the new ICT colocation shelter was constructed at the 220kV GIS in
Jamjee, and all-optical fiber network connections were successfully migrated on October 25,
2024.

6.2 Distribution System

The distribution network system is continually being expanded and upgraded in line with
the Distribution System Master Plan, Distribution Plans for Improving the Power Supply
Reliability, and Smart Grid Master Plan-2029, not only to cater to the increasing domestic
load but also to improve the quality and reliability of power. The expansion programs are
also aimed at bringing operational efficiency and ensuring a reliable power supply to
customers. Some of the major works completed during the year were the upgradation of
33/11kV substations at Pelrithang (from 1x2.5 MVA to 2x2.5 MVA) and the conversion of
33kV AIS/VCB to 33kV GIS for 33/11kV Pelrithang and Sarpang Tar under Gelephu and
Gurungdangra under Phuentsholing substations. Similarly, the conversion of 33kV AIS/VCB
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to GIS switchgear of 33/11kV at Wamrong, Trashigang, Kewathang Trongsa, Samtse Town,
and Samdru Jongkhar Town was initiated in the year and will be completed in 2025. The
permanent power supply works to the various Gyalsung sites are progressing as per the plan
and is under work in progress.

During the year, a total of 1,285 households were electrified through BPC'’s fill-in RE program
during the year. The focus is still on improving customer services by automating and re-
engineering processes and providing online service platforms to customers.

The company is expanding the distribution system automation that has been initiated to
improve reliability and for obtaining real-time data. The technology transfer on the latest
state of art substation automation system i.e., the IEC61850-based technology for 33/11kV
substations has been completed. The Distribution Transformer metering aimed to monitor
and reduce the outages at the DT level has been completed for conventional transformers.
With the improvement of reliability through the installation of Distribution Automation
(DA), such as Auto-Recloser Circuit Breakers (ARCB), Sectionalizers, and Fault Passage
Indicators, the company is moving ahead with the upscaling of DA on a larger scale. On the
smart metering front, the pilot project with 5,000 smart meters has been completed, and
with the confidence level boosted, the company is moving ahead with rolling out the smart
metering for 10,000 customers in Thimphu.

The operation and maintenance of Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in the country has been
entrusted to BPC since July 1, 2022, by the Royal Government of Bhutan. As of December
2024, 65 numbers (28 AC Chargers & 37 DC Chargers) of EVCS are being operated and
maintained by BPC with the operation and maintenance costs being borne by the Royal
Government. As of date, no major operational challenges have been encountered by BPC in
maintaining the EVCS.

To gauge the customer satisfaction level, the DHI independently carries out a Customer
Satisfaction Survey. The satisfaction index achievement is 4.24 on a scale of 5. The areas of
improvement recommended in the survey report are proactively being addressed by the
Management.

7. Human Resources

The Support Services Division (SSD) has undertaken various initiatives to enhance employee
motivation, engagement, and capacity development. These efforts are aimed at fostering a
positive work environment and ensuring the continuous growth of BPC employees.

7.1 Exit Interviews
To understand the reasons behind employee resignations and gather insights for improving
retention strategies, SSD conducted exit interviews for employees who got separated from
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the company. Their feedback was considered by the Management for implementation.

7.2 Onboarding Programs

All the newly recruited employees underwent a structured onboarding program designed to
familiarize them with BPC’s vision, operations, culture, and values. This initiative ensures
that new employees integrate smoothly into the organization and remain motivated in their
roles and acquaint them with various processes, systems, and etiquettes to enable them for
a friendly and comfortable beginning of their career in the company.

7.3 Training and Development Opportunities

BPC remains committed to continuous learning and skill enhancement for its employees. In
2024, 29 training in-house programs were conducted at the Central Maintenance Division
(CMD), Begana, and in other facilities of the company, benefiting 940 employees. Also, 172
employees were sent for ex-country in 22 different courses. Additionally, employees were
provided opportunities to specialize in their respective fields through the support from the
Indian Technical and Economic Cooperation (ITEC) Program and Long-Term Training
Programs (LTTP), ensuring they acquired expertise relevant to their roles. Seventeen
employees were given scholarships to study MBA at RIM in 2024.

7.4 Reward and Recognition Systems

To acknowledge and appreciate the hard work of employees, BPC has a well-structured
reward and recognition system. The Employee of the Year award was presented during the
BPC Day celebration, with a female employee from a remote location being recognized
alongside four nominated employees. Additionally, employees completing 10, 20, and 30
years of service were honored through the Service Medal Recognition from the Royal Civil
Service Commission.

7.5 Equal Opportunity and Career Enhancement

BPC remains committed to providing equal career advancement opportunities to all
employees. Timely promotions were awarded across all levels based on merit and
performance, ensuring fairness in career progression. Furthermore, the company supports
specialization through structured training programs, allowing employees to grow and
develop skills in their respective fields.

7.6 Employee Well-being and Work-Life Balance

To support working parents, daycare facilities were established in the Thimphu and
Phuentsholing regions, enabling employees to balance their professional and personal
responsibilities effectively. A lactation room is also set up at the Head Office, Thimphu.

7.7 Participation in Sports and Team-Building Activities
To promote well-being and camaraderie among employees, BPC spent nearly Nu. 1 million
in various sporting events across the country. These events provided employees with
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opportunities to engage in team-building activities, fostering closer ties and hereby
enhancing workplace morale and motivation.

7.8 System Improvement for Faster Employee Services

The HRIS online system is now fully functional and many approvals in the Corporate Services
Department are being processed and approved through the same thereby saving time, and
resources and bringing operational efficiency to internal processes and documentation. This
year, the employee welfare system is now routed through the HRIS system, and the provision
of welfare benefits and refunds is much faster.

8. Challenges
Some of the key challenges that the company is facing are highlighted below:

8.1 Employee Turnover

In 2024, a total of 70 employees separated from BPC, with an attrition rate of 3.15%. While
this rate is not alarming, the company took swift action to address workforce gaps by
promptly filling all critical vacant positions. Seventy-three employees were recruited during
the year. The recruitment and separation do not include those who were separated to join
back to BPC for career enhancement opportunities.

8.2  Reliability and Quality Power Supply

A “Reliable Power Supply” is one of the single biggest challenges that the company faces
today. The consolidated power outage management and information system developed and
implemented from September 2022 onwards provides the reliability indices. The
interruptions are broadly categorized as Planned Shutdown, Ad-hoc Shutdown, emergency
shutdown, momentary trips, Grid Failure, and Permanent/Sustained fault trips detailing the
causes, number of outages, and restoration time. There has been an improvement in the
monthly average reliability indices (System Average Interruption Frequency Index -SAIFI)
of 2.4 in 2024 compared to 2.57 in 2023, with the number of outages decreasing. It is still
the biggest challenge due to rugged terrain, adverse weather, and hostile environmental
conditions. Improving reliability is the priority for BPC, and adequate resources are set every
year to improve reliability.

Similarly, BPC is experiencing power quality issues owing to radial longer lines in rural areas
and higher load density in some of the lines and transformers in urban areas. BPC is
continually upgrading and extending new lines and substations to improve the quality of
power supplied to the customers. The power quality assessment for Mongar, Paro, Chukha
(under Phuntsholing), Sarpang (under Gelephu), and Samdrup Jongkhar Dzongkhags was
carried out in the past, covering 86 Distribution Transformers, 237 Buildings, and 1,806
customers. The recommended remedial measures were also implemented. In 2025, similar
assessments shall be carried out for Haa, Lhuentse, Trashiyangtse, Zhemgan,g, and Dagana
Dzongkhags.

24

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited



Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

The Electricity Regulatory Authority (ERA) has set a Distribution Reliability and
Transmission Performance system Target for the years 2024-2025. While achieving
distribution reliability targets is challenging due to the constraints mentioned above, the
transmission availability for the year has been successfully achieved at 99.27% against the
target of 98%.

8.3  Safety at Work

Safety awareness and advocacy were carried out thoroughly in all the Dzongkhags. In
addition to adherence to safety norms, codes, and regulations and promoting the usage of
proper safety gadgets at all times during the O&M and R&M work for achieving Zero
accidents, employees were reminded and made aware of the safe work procedures to
perform the work. Risk assessments are done before the start of any work to ensure safe
working procedures that help to avoid and minimize undesired incidents. With collective
efforts, improvement in occupational health & safety practices, and by enhancing the
capacity of the employees, in 2024, BPC achieved ZERO accidents for BPC employees,
considerably a great achievement. The company continues to conduct intensive safety
awareness programs for its employees and the public through various social media
platforms. Safety at the workplace for our employees and the public at large is our priority.
BPC has been ISO certified since 2017, and with the ISO certification it has helped to bring
continual improvement and has strengthened BPC in reducing accidents in a smoother way.

The online system is developed to update the daily 0&M activities to monitor proper safe
procedures and ensure adherence to the safety norms so that while performing the work, it
is safe and as per the norms and requirements.

8.4 Right of Way (RoW)
The Right of Way (RoW) for the network system still continues to be a significant challenge.

The impact and inconveniences of the transmission and distribution lines and substations to
farmland and other properties were raised and discussed in the second session of the fourth
parliament. As directed by the Ministry of Energy and Natural Resources (MoENR), BPC shall
submit a detailed report on the issues, challenges, and recommendations, including the
implementation schedule.

Looking ahead, BPC shall coordinate and work diligently with the respective stakeholders
and the affected parties to resolve the RoW in the most amicable way to ensure that the RoW
issues do not arise in the future.

8.5 ForestFire

The nation has been experiencing alarming and recurring forest fires, especially in Thimphu
and its nearby Dzongkhags, exclusively during the dry season. While the causes of the fire
are not exactly known, natural causes, human activities, and negligence are some of the
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common causes pointed out. Understanding the degree of impact of forest fire to human and
animal lives, and damage to the properties and environment, BPC ensures that the electrical
network system built is in accordance with international standards and that regular
operation and maintenance works are being carried out. Further, to suit the geographical
terrain and weather conditions of the country, the standards, equipment, and materials
required are customized. Many fire resilience improvement plans have been implemented
in the preceding years, and BPC continually apportions huge investments to adopt
technology, develop guidelines and SoPs that will further ensure that the system built is fire
resilient. Conversion of bare to covered conductors in fire-risky areas, providing PCC to pole-
mounted substations, silicone rubber sleeves for the jumper wires, partial discharges,
conductor space, and leakage testing are some of the technical interventions implemented
by BPC and will be continued further.

As one of the primary causes of electrical infrastructure being damaged is due to the trees
falling out of the RoW on the network; BPC shall take up the matter with topmost priority
with relevant stakeholders to extend the RoW and allow BPC to fell trees out of the RoW if
found risky.

9. Future Outlook

The Druk Holding & Investments (DHI) has taken appropriate reform measures to enhance
the governance structure and to increase operational efficiency, and has already been
implemented.

On the business front, with the recovery phase in the economy, there is an increased demand
for electricity. The construction for the development of the Industrial Zone for the supply of
300 MW load at Samtse has been initiated in 2023 and will be completed in the first quarter
of 2025. With the commissioning of Punatsangchhu Hydroelectric Project Il in December
2024, the Associated Transmission System (ATS) will be taken over. The construction of
Small Hydro Power Plants, Khorlochu Hydro Power, has begun, and some large Hydropower
Plants and Solar farms are in the pipeline. BPC is proactively engaged in planning and
constructing the transmission access to these generating plants. Once completed, these
infrastructures will not only strengthen and make the network system robust but also
contribute to revenue growth ensuring the stability and sustainability of the company.
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commits to its unwavering support and looks forward to the same level of commitment,
dedication, and hard work from the employees in the days ahead.

Tashi Delek!

For and on behalf of the BPC Board,

(Ms. Kes, i)

Chairperson
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The BPC Board of Directors is dedicated to establishing and upholding strong corporate
governance practices across the Company. This commitment is critical to fulfilling their
responsibilities to enhance shareholder value and aligning with the principles and
recommendations outlined in the Corporate Governance Code.

The following statement outlines the application of the code’s principle throughout the year
2024.

i. Board Charter

The Board charter outlines the guidelines governing the operations of the Board of
directors, defining their roles and responsibilities and outlining the board’s functions and
authority. Its purpose is to ensure that all Board members are fully informed about their
duties and obligations. The board charter adheres to the DHI's Corporate Governance
Code, ensuring compliance with its principles.

ii. Composition of the Board.

Currently, the Board comprises seven (7) members, including the Chief Executive Officer,
two Independent Directors, and four Non-Independent Directors. This arrangement
guarantees a majority of independent directors in accordance with Clause 2.4.2. ii of the
Corporate Governance Code. The Board activity promotes diversity and strives for a
balanced mix of professionals with different sets of skills, competencies, knowledge, and
experiences to facilitate unbiased decision-making, as stated in the code.

Table 1: Board Member, 2024

The details of the Board of Directors and the date of appointment

Designation Appointment Date = Description Status
. . Reappointed on 18th . Non-
[ | Dasho Kesang Deki | Cabinet Secretary March, 2024 Chairman i
Director General
. ’ Reappointed on 18th | Board of Non-
2 RilalieluiEU Ry EE N ARG March, 2024 Director Independent
MoENR
Chief Executive Appointed on March | Board of
<} | Mr. Kezang Jamtsho Officer, SMCL 18, 2024 Director Independent
| Mr. Passane Dorii CEO, Dawa Appointed on March | Board of Non-
' g Lor] Hospitality Pvt Ltd | 18, 2024 Director independent
Chief Survey .
. . Appointed on March | Board of
51| Mr. Sonam Tobgay | Engineer, Thimphu 18, 2024 Director Independent
Thromde
Mr. Chencho T. . Appointed on Board of Non-
0 Namgay birector, Dol, DHI October 25, 2024 Director Independent
. Chief Executive Re-appointed on Member Executive
7 [esorEmiy Officer August 23, 2024 Secretary Director
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iii. Board Responsibilities

The Board’s duties align with Clause 2.4.1 of the Corporate Governance Code in the
following manner:

The Board comprises competent and experienced members who exhibit leadership,
entrepreneurialism, and integrity and exercise sound judgement in a transparent,
accountable, and responsible manner. They act in the best interests of the company and
shareholders, adhering to high standards of governance. All Board members are expected
to safeguard the company’s investments, enhance profitability, and uphold the
company’s core values while fulfilling their fiduciary duties.

The Board is responsible for providing guidance on the company's strategic plans,
establishing its values and standards, and ensuring the implementation of an appropriate
system for risk management and internal control. Collectively, the Board ensures that its
obligations to shareholders are understood and fulfilled and that qualified individuals are
appointed to senior positions within the company.

iv. Responsibilities of the Chairperson

The role of a Chairperson is to guide and lead the work of the Board. The Chairperson of
the board shall also not chair any other Board committees.

The responsibilities of the Chairperson, amongst others, are as follows:

a. Lead the Board to promote high standards of governance and to ensure Board
effectiveness and smooth functioning on all aspects of its role in a rims and
objective manner.

b. Ensure effective accountability and governance of the company, consistent with
relevant legislation

c. Set the agenda and preside over board meetings to ensure that adequate time is
available for discussion of all agenda items, in particular, on the strategic issues

d. Conduct effective Board meetings and encourage a culture of openness, active
participation and constructive debate.

e. Ensure accurate record of Board meetings are taken and verifying that Board
decisions are implemented

f.  Ensure that the directors receive complete, adequate and timely information to
enable quality and informed decision-making

g. Encourage constructive relations within the Board and between the Board and
Management to ensure the company is managed effectively

h. Participate in the selection and appointment of new board directors and the CEO
in close collaboration with the shareholder (s)

i. Approve leave, ex-country travel and training of CEO

j-  Meet shareholder expectations by leading and ensuring effective annual Board
and CEO evaluation processes and
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k. Develop and maintain sound relations and communications with shareholders

V.

and stakeholders. This may include representing the company’s interest in
meetings with ministries, foreign company representatives and with other
organizations within the country.

Responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer

The responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer, amongst others, are as follows:

a.

e

vi.

Managing the company in accordance with the strategy and performance targets.
Policies and directives approved by the Board

Recommending long term vision and strategy for the company to the Board
Leading the Management team in managing day to day operations of the
organization, its people and resources

Implementing all Board approved plans, policies and performance targets
Ensuring the authorities delegated from the Board are exercised in a competent
manner and within the intent of such delegation and referring all matters outside
his delegation to the Board for approval,

Acting as the company’s interface with its operating environment and the
business community

Protecting and enhancing the image and reputation of the company

Ensuring compliance with legal and regulatory obligation

Promoting leadership development and proper succession planning for key
positions in the company

Ensuring ethical standards as established by Board are complied with

Keeping the Board apprised of all matters of significance

Keeping the Board Chairperson apprised of all matters of significance that occur
between the Board meetings

. Providing the Board with accurate, relevant, timely and complete information and

Other responsibilities as designated by the Board from time to time

Board Meetings

In 2024, 8 Board meetings were held and the Annual General Meeting. The dates of the
meeting and attendance of the Directors are set below:

a) Dates of Board Meetings held in 2024:

SL. No Date Board Meeting No.

1 | 28-Feb-24 170th Board Meeting

2 | 18-Mar-24 Annual General Meeting
3 | 5-Apr-24 171st Board Meeting

4 | 15-May-24 172nd Board Meeting

5| 2-Aug-24 173rd Board Meeting

6 | 20-Aug-24 174th Board Meeting

7 | 10-Sep-24 175th Board Meeting

8 | 20-Nov-24 176th Board Meeting

9 | 26-Nov-24 177th Board Meeting
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b) Attendance of current Board Directors from April 5th, 2024 till 315t December

2024:
SN Name of the Board Directors Attendence
1 Dasho Kesang Deki, Cabionet Secretary, Chairperson 7/8
2 Mr. Karma P Dorji, Director General, DOE, MOENR 8/8
3 Mr. Kezang Jamtsho, Chief Executive Officer, SMCL 6/8
4 Mr. Passang Dorji, CEO, Dawa Hospitality Pvt Ltd 7/8
5 Mr. Sonam Tobgay, Chief Survey Engineer, Thimphu Thromde | 6/8
6 Mr. Chencho T. Namgay, Director, Dol, DHI 1/8
7 Mr. Sonam Tobjey, Chief Executive Officer, BPC 7/8

The Directors receive notices of meeting, typically at least two working days prior to the date
of the meeting, along with the agenda complete with a full set of board papers to provide
sufficient details of matters to be deliberated during the meeting.

The Company Secretary ensures to duly record and properly keep all the minutes of the
Board meetings together with the decisions made by way of circular passed resolutions.

vii. Board Committees

The Board may from time to time establish Board Committees as is considered appropriate
to assist in carrying out its duties and responsibilities. The Board has delegated certain
functions to the following Board Committees to assist in the execution of its responsibilities:

a. Board Audit and Risk Committee

b. Board Tender and Technical Committee

c. Board HR Committee

d. Board Tariff Review Committee (under special request)

The Board appoints the members and Chairperson of each Committee. Each Board
Committee operates under clearly defined terms of reference approved by the Board.

a. Board Audit and Risk Committee

The company’s Audit and Risk Committee consists of one independent Director and 3 non-
independent Directors, with the Chairperson designated by the Board. The Board members
were changed during the 21st AGM dated March 18th, 2024 and thus there were different

BARC members in 2024.
i. Attendance of the Committee Members
SN Name of the Board Directors Presence Absence Attendance
1 Mr. Kinzang Tobgay 3 4 3/7
2 Mr. Karma P Dorji 2 5 2/7
3 Mr. Sonam Lhundrup 2 5 2/7
4 Ms. Tashi Lhamo 2 5 2/7
5 Mr. Chencho T Namgay 2 5 2/7
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6 Mr. Passang Dorji

4/7

7 Mr. Sonam Tobgay

3/7

ii. Meetings held during 2024

In 2024, 7 Board Audit and Risk Committee meetings were held. The dates of the meeting

held are set below:

1 15-Jan-24 82nd BARC Meeting
2 15-Feb-24 83rd BARC Meeting
3 28-Feb-24 84th BARC Meeting
4 1-May-24 85th BARC Meeting
5 22-Jul-24 86th BARC Meeting
6 29-Oct-24 87th BARC Meeting
7 20-Dec-24 88th BARC Meeting

The primary purpose of the Audit and Risk Committee is to ensure the Board’s confidence
through an impartial and independent evaluation of financial, operational, and
administrative controls and procedures. This committee is responsible for establishing and
upholding internal controls and managing risks. For more comprehensive information,
please refer to the DHI Corporate Governance Code Appendix 2, page 37, which contains the
detailed charter for the Board Audit Committee.

b. Board Tender and Technical Committee

The company's Tender Committee consists of two independent Directors, one Non-
independent Director, and one non-independent Executive Director. The board appoints the

Chairperson of the Committee.

i. Attendance of the Committee Members
Name of Committee Members Attendance
Mr. Karma P Dorji, Director General, DOE, 5/5
MOENR
Mr. Kezang Jamtsho, CEO, SMCL 3/5
Mr. Sonam Tobgay, Chief Survey Engineer, 4/5
Thimphu Thromde
Mr. Sonam Tobjey, Chief Executive Officer, BPC | 5/5

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Board Tender Committee, the main responsibilities

of Tender Committee are as follows:

. To satisfy itself that proper procurement procedures has been followed as per the
norms provided in the Procurement Manual,

ii. all Bidders have been provided with equal time and opportunity for submission
of bids,
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iii. modifications of the bidding documents, if any, have been communicated
simultaneously to all Bidders,

iv. response to any Bidder’s query has been sent to all Bidders simultaneously,

V. no specific Bidder / Bidders have been put to undue advantage / disadvantage
due to actions of BPC,

Vi. that the evaluation committee has carried out the work in strict compliance to the

terms of the tender
vii.  In 2024, 5 Board Tender and Technical Committee meeting was held. The dates of
the meeting are listed as follows:

ii. Meetings held during 2024

SL.No Date Board Meetings No.
1 16-Apr-24 58th BTTC
2 18-Jun-24 59th BTTC
3 24-Jul-24 60th BTTC
4 21-Aug-24 61st BTTC
5 20-Dec-24 62nd BTTC

c¢. Board Human Resource Committee

The function of the Board-Level Human Resource Committee (BHRC) is to evaluate the
Human Resource (HR) proposals put forth by the management for approval or
recommendation by the BPC Board. The members of the company‘s Board HR Committee
are selected by the Board periodically, with the chairperson appointed by the Board.

. Attendance of Committee Members
Name of Committee Members Attendance \
Mr. Passang Dorji 1/1
Mr. Kezang Jamtsho 1/1
Ms. Tashi Lhamo 1/1
Mr. Sonam Tobjey 1/1

The roles and responsibilities of Board HR Committee but not limited to as follows:

i Review proposals submitted by the Management and approve or recommend to
the Board.

ii. Carry out the Selection Interview for Head of Wings/Services.

iii. Carry out any other responsibility related to HR as assigned or delegated by the
BPC Board.

The Board HR Committee may also suggest proposals and direct Management to undertake
the study and present the proposal to Committee.

In 2024, 1 BHRC meetings were held and the date of the meetings is listed below:

ii. Meetings held during 2024

SL. No Date Board Meetings No.
1 9-Aug-24 57th BHRC
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d. Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and Board of Directors

The DHI determines the sitting fee of the Board members. The fees are fixed and not based

on a commission, percentage of profits, or turnover.

Mr. Sonam Tobjey, the CEO, received remuneration amounting to Nu. 5,028,721.00 for the
period between January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024. This information is disclosed in Note
no. 37 (Related Party Transaction under the sub-heading Key Management Personnel) of the
Financial Statements. The remunerations of the Board of Directors in the form of sitting fees

were paid as follows.

Sl no Name of Directors Amount
(Nu.)
1 Ms. Kesang Deki, Cabinet Secretary Secretary 60,000.00
5 Mr. Kinzang Tobgay, Managing Partner, Bhutan 16,000.00
Consultancy Services
3 Mr. Karma Penjor Dorji, Director General, DoE, MoENR 100,000.00
4 Mr. Kezang Jamtsho, Chief Executive Officer, SMCL 72,000.00
5 Ms. Tashi Lhamo, Director, DoF, DHI 40,000.00
6 Mr. Passang Dorji, CEO, Dawa Hospitality Pvt. Ltd 80,000.00
- Mr. Sonam Tobgay, Chief Survey Engineer, Thimphu 68.000.00
Thromde
Mr. Chencho Tshering Namgay, Department of
8 Investments, DHI, Thimphu 16,000.00
9 Mr. Sonam Lhundrup, General Counsel, DDHI 16,000.00
10 Mr. Kur.lza.mg Dorji, Zimpon Wogma, Office of the 16,000.00
Gyalpoi Zimpon
11 Ms. Dechen Wangmo, Director, Corporate Affairs, DGPC 24,000.00

e. Annual General Meeting

The 22nd Annual General Meeting was held on 17 March 2025. The agenda included
reviewing and adopting the Audited Accounts for the fiscal year concluding on December 31
2024, the auditors' report, matters regarding the appointment and remuneration of auditors,

and the declaration of dividends for the year.

f. Corporate Social Responsibility

The company's corporate social responsibility (CSR) initiatives are based on the 2013 CSR
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framework introduced by the DHI. These initiatives encompass ensuring legal compliance,
making operational contributions and providing charitable contributions that are in line
with the company's core business activities. In 2024, BPC has contributed Nu. 1.97 million
for various activities, keeping within the approved CSR budget by DHI.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

To the Shareholder(s) of Bhutan Power Corporation Limited,

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bhutan Power Corporation Limited (the
Company), which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2024,
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respect,
of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial
performance and its Cash Flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bhutanese
Accounting Standards (BAS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of this report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Bhutan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

We do not have any matters to report under this for the current audit.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report (but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this audit report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with BAS, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as
a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions
misrepresentations, or override of internal control;

ii. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control;

.Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

iv. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our audit report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a Going
concern; and

v. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

—-

ii
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 266 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016, we enclose the Minimum
Audit Examination and Reporting Requirements as Appendix I with statements on the
matters specified therein to the extent applicable.

Further, as required under Section 265 of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016, we report that:

a. We have obtained all information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Company’s Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts; and

d.  The Company has complied with other legal and regulatory requirements to the extent
applicable to the company.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited
Firm License No. 1036380

O
Tashi Rinzing Schmidt
Audit Partner
CPA License No. 34762

Date: 2/19 [ L0225
Place: Thimphu, Bhutan

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited
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Minimum Audit Examination and Reporting requirements

As requirement by section 266 of the Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016 and on the basis of such
checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we report as follows:

1

10.

11.

12.

The company maintains proper records detailing the full particulars of fixed assets,
including quantitative details and location. However, during physical verification,
discrepancies were identified due to mismatched custodian records and failure to update
disposed assets in the PVR. These inconsistencies have impacted asset tracking and the
authenticity of the PVR. Corrective actions, including updating SAP records and
reconducting physical verification as of the current date, have been recommended.

The company did not conduct a revaluation of its fixed assets during the year. However,
it was identified that lease liabilities and right-of-use (ROU) assets for land leases were
not recognized, which is non-compliant with BFRS 16. Management has since taken steps
to rectify this issue.

Physical verification of finished goods, stores, spare parts, and raw materials is
conducted at regular intervals. However, discrepancies were identified during the
physical verification of inventory balances for 'Construction of 33kV D/C Line using
ACSR (Wolf) Conductor from 132/33kV Yurmoo Substation to Project Site, Samcholing,'
particularly with the missing inventories as detailed in the Management Report.

The company follows procedures for physical verification of stocks that are reasonable
and adequate for its operations. However, issues with missing inventories and
discrepancies between SAP records and physical stock were noted at storage location
0016 (Plant THD1), which need to be reconciled.

No significant discrepancies were noted between the physical stock verification and book
records in general. However, inventory discrepancies amounting to Nu. 1,283,878.16
were found in the transfer to RSD, Gelephu, requiring immediate reconciliation.

The company has a robust system for recording receipts, issues, and consumption of
materials. However, there were instances of reclassification of mistakenly capitalized
inventory at an incorrect rate, leading to discrepancies amounting to Nu. 14,989,784.38,
which impacts asset values, depreciation, and inventory balances.

Quantitative reconciliation is carried out at the end of the accounting year for all major
inventory items. However, discrepancies between SAP records and actual physical stock
require immediate attention and correction.

The company reviews obsolete, damaged, slow-moving, and surplus inventories
regularly. This review process will be essential to resolve issues with items such as the
one found with a balance of Nu. 24,900, which no longer exists physically, leading to an
overstatement of inventory balances in SAP.

Obsolete and surplus inventories are disposed of in line with company policies. Proceeds
from such disposals are appropriately accounted for, and similar procedures will need to
be applied to resolve any unaccounted-for inventories.

The company seeks approval from the Board before writing off any material loss or
discrepancies in inventory. The missing inventory and discrepancies in the asset records
will require Board approval for adjustments.

The company’s stock valuation is conducted in accordance with applicable accounting
standards. However, discrepancies in inventory capitalization at the project site need to
be addressed, and necessary adjustments should be made to ensure compliance with
financial reporting standards.

The rate of interest and terms of loans availed by the company are fair and in line with
industry standards, ensuring no adverse financial impact.
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13. The company has not granted loans to other parties in violation of its Articles of
Incorporation. This practice remains in compliance with regulations.

14. Loans and advances granted to officers and staff are in compliance with service rules.
There is no indication of excessive advances in the current period, and monitoring
practices remain sound.

15. The company has an adequate system of internal controls to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of accounting records. However, improvements are needed in asset
tracking, custodian records, and inventory reconciliation to prevent discrepancies from
arising.

16. The company has a reasonable system of authorization at proper levels and internal
controls for issuing stores and allocating materials. There are no significant issues with
this system, though attention is needed for correcting the discrepancies in inventory.

17. The company follows a competitive bidding process for purchasing goods and services,
including stores, raw materials, and equipment, ensuring that procurement practices
align with industry norms and company policy.

18. (a) & (b) On the basis of reviewing the books of account and relevant records of the
Company and according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the Company has not entered into any transaction for purchases and sale of
goods and service made in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered into with the
director(s) or any other party(ies) related to the director(s) or with the Company or firms
in which the director(s) are directly or indirectly interested except DHI & its subsidiaries,
the details of which is duly disclosed in the Related party transactions in notes to accounts
to the financial statements. (b) The examination of records does not reveal any transaction
entered into by the Company which is prejudicial to the interest of the Company wherein
directors are directly or indirectly interested.

19. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our test
checking of the accounts and other books and records, to the best of our knowledge, we
are of the opinion that no personal expenses has been charged to the Company accounts
other than those payable under contractual obligations/service rule and/or in
accordance with generally accepted business practice.

20. The company regularly reviews stores, raw materials, and finished goods for
unserviceability. Provisions for losses, if any, are made. It is important to monitor the
disposal of obsolete inventories to ensure proper provisioning and accounting.

21. This section is not applicable to the company.

22. This section is not applicable to the company.

23. This section is not applicable to the company.

24. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is regular in depositing rates and taxes, duties, royalties, and provident funds
with the appropriate authorities.

25. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there was
no undisputed amount payable in respect of taxes, rates, duties, royalties, provident
funds and other statutory deductions outstanding as on the last day of financial year.

26. This section is not applicable to the company.

27. This section is not applicable to the company.

28. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has a reasonable system of periodical review of tariffs and based on such
review and considering the market and economic conditions, the tariff rates are
determined and approved by the Electricity Regulatory Authority (ERA). Also, the
Company has proper costing system for the purpose of fixation of tariff rates.
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30.
31.

32.

33.

34.

35:

36.
37:

38.

39.

40.

41.

N
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the credit
sales policy of the Company is reasonable, and no credit rating of customers is carried
out as the same is not applicable for the Company.

This section is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company does have a reasonable system of continuous follow-up with debtors and other
parties for recovery of outstanding amounts. Age wise analysis is carried out for
management information.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
management of liquid resources particularly cash/bank and short-term deposits etc. are
adequate and that excessive amount are not lying idle in non-interest-bearing accounts
and withdrawals of loan amounts are made after assessing the requirement of fund from
time to time and no excess amounts is withdrawn leading to avoidable interest burden
on the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
activities carried out by the Company are lawful and intra-vires the Articles of the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
activities /investment decisions are made subject to prior approval of the Board and
investments in new projects.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has established effective budgetary control system.

This section is not applicable to the company.

The details of remuneration, commission and other payments made in cash or in kind to
the Board of Directors including the Chief Executive Officer or any of their relatives
(including spouse(s) and child/children) if any, by the Company directly or indirectly
are disclosed in the notes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
management of the Company complies with the directives of the Board of Directors as
we have not come across any such incidence where it is not complied.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the officials
of the Company have not transmitted any price sensitive information which are not made
publicly available, unauthorized to their relatives / friends/ associates or close persons
which would directly or indirectly benefit themselves. We have however relied on the
management assertion on the same and cannot independently verify the same.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, proper
records are kept for inter unit transactions/services and arrangements for services made
with other agencies engaged in similar activities.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The
company ensures proper agreements are executed for leases, with reasonable terms. The
company adheres to these agreements when acquiring or leasing machinery /equipment.

In case of other service sector companies

1.

2;

All matters specified in the minimum audit examination and reporting requirements are
applied to a service sector company.

The Company has a reasonable system of periodical review of tariffs and based on such
review and considering the market and economic conditions, the tariff rates are
determined and approved by the Electricity Regulatory Authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, proper
records are kept for inter unit transactions/ services and arrangements for services made
with other agencies engaged in similar activities.
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4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, proper
agreements are executed and that the terms and conditions of leases are reasonable.

Computerized Accounting Environment:

1. The Company is using SAP as its enterprise resource planning (ERP) software, which has
been customized to meet the specific requirements of the company. Based on our review,
it appears that SAP is adequately configured to handle the company's financial
transactions and data processing needs. However, it is important to ensure that the
customizations align with the latest regulatory and operational requirements, especially
in light of audit findings, such as the discrepancies in SAP records and the missing
custodian details. Continuous monitoring and updates to the system should be
performed to mitigate risks and ensure compliance.

2. In our opinion, the Company has adequate safeguard measures and backup facilities in
place. The SAP system is equipped with secure backup protocols to protect data integrity
and prevent loss in case of system failure. Regular backups are performed, and files are
stored in secure, redundant locations to ensure business continuity. Based on the findings
of inventory discrepancies, it's crucial to verify that backup systems extend to include
critical asset and inventory data to safeguard against potential future discrepancies.

3. The Company has established proper backup facilities for storing files, as all files are
uploaded and maintained within SAP. In the context of recent audit findings regarding
missing inventories and asset discrepancies, it is important to review and confirm that
the backup systems effectively cover all relevant files, including those related to
inventory management, capitalized assets, and any other critical financial records.
Ensuring that backup files are comprehensive and up-to-date will mitigate the risk of
data loss impacting financial reporting.

4. The operational controls in place are generally adequate to ensure the correctness and
validity of input data and output information. SAP’s internal controls, such as validation
rules and audit trails, are implemented to verify data accuracy. However, discrepancies
such as the reclassification of capitalized inventory and missing inventory balances
highlight the need for additional scrutiny in the areas of inventory tracking and asset
management within the system. We recommend strengthening operational controls,
particularly in the areas of inventory and asset reconciliation, to avoid similar issues in
the future.

5. The Company has implemented appropriate measures to prevent unauthorized access to
the SAP system and its files. Security protocols, including user authentication, role-based
access control, and encryption, are in place. Given the audit findings regarding asset
tracking and discrepancies in SAP records, it is vital to ensure that access to critical
financial and asset-related data is tightly controlled and monitored. Regular audits of
user permissions and access logs should be conducted to identify any potential
vulnerabilities.

6. The Company ensured the completeness and integrity of data during the migration to
the new system, and the operation of SAP has been smooth post-migration. However,
issues related to inventory discrepancies, missing custodianship details, and incorrect
capitalizations during the migration phase suggest that data validation and integrity
checks were not fully effective in some areas. It is recommended that future data
migrations be accompanied by more rigorous validation procedures to ensure data
consistency, particularly in inventory and asset records, which have been a focus of recent
audit findings.
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Other requirements:

1. Going Concern Problem
Based on the attached Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, audited by
us, we have no reason to believe that the company is not a going concern on the statement of
financial position date.

2. Ratio Analysis
Relevant ratio analysis has been carried out and the details are under Section “Ratio
Analysis.”

3. Compliance with the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016
The company has complied with the various provisions of the Companies Act of Bhutan 2016,
details are under section “compliance calendar & checklist.”

4. Adherence to Laws, Rules, and Regulations
The audit of the Bhutan Power Corporation Limited is governed by the Companies Act of
Bhutan 2016, Internal Service manual, and Bhutanese Accounting Standards. The scope of
audit is limited to examination and review of the financial statements prepared by the
management. During our audit, we have considered the compliance of the provisions of the
said Act, rules and regulations as well as the Bhutanese Accounting Standards.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited
Firm License No. 1036380

Tashi Rinzing Schmidt
Audit Partner

CPA License No. 34762
Date: 2j/i4f os
Place: Thimphu, Bhutan
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

(Amount in Nu.)

Particular Note | December 31,2024 | December 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant, and equipment 4 42,920,819,966 38,831,495,566
Intangible assets 5 64,278,737 80,326,516
Right of use asset 6 43,629,916 28,039,277
Long-term loans and advances 7 13,857,529 4,022,012
Other receivables 8 1,634,707 199,330
Other non-current assets 9 29,772,373 34,593,727
Total non-current assets 43,073,993,228 38,978,676,428
Current assets
Inventories 10 665,303,988 893,404,759
Amounts due from customers for 1 1,405,548 119,230,945
contract work
Trade & other receivables 12 1,931,818,529 1,783,921,129
Cash and cash equivalents 13 280,607,493 1,311,339,683
Short-term loans and advances 7 8,637,929 4,153,603
Other current assets 14 782,838,576 459,075,376
Total current assets 3,670,612,064 4,571,125,495
TOTAL ASSETS 46,774,605,292 43,549,801,923
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Equity
Share Capital 15 11,197,513,979 11,200,642,905
Retained Earning 5,537,672,179 4,905,665,623
Asset Replacement Reserve 225,160,517 212,388,921
Other Comprehensive Income (218,498,278) (231,610,570)
Total Shareholder’s equity 16,741,848,397 16,087,086,879
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 16 20,595,940,419 18,413,513,288
Deferred grants 17 1,251,443,021 1,318,112,322
Deferred Customer’s Contribution 18 101,900,059 74,830,064
Other payables 19 871,139,083 814,045,645
Employee benefit liabilities 20 782,509,053 684,983,730
Deferred Income Tax liabilities (Net) 21 1,732,067,762 1,477,390,490
Lease Liability 22 46,292,794 30,870,289
Total Non-current liabilities 25,381,292,190 22,813,745,827
Current liabilities
Borrowings 16 381,857,440 370,447,933
Deferred grants 17 63,471,222 63,604,611
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BHUTAN POWER CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024

(Amount in Nu.)
Particular Note December 31,2024 | December 31, 2023
Deferred Customer Contribution 18 12,942,191 12,942,191
Amounts‘due to customers for 11 135,620,599 76,102,240
construction contract
Trade & other payables 23 3,211,187,294 3,281,458,886
Employee benefit liabilities 20 297,878,464 411,229,167
Income tax payable (net of advance) 24 450,296,352 365,495,451
Other current liabilities 25 62,540,459 63,853,407
Lease Liability (land) 22 5,670,683 3,835,331
Total current liabilities 4,621,464,705 4,648,969,217
Total liabilities 30,002,756,895 27,462,715,044
Total equity and liabilities 46,744,605,292 43,549,801,923

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited:

Ms. Tashi Rinzing Schmidt, CPA
Audit Partner

CPA License No. 34762

Date: 3jia/ 2025

Place: Thimphu, Bhutan

For Bhutan Power Corporation Limited:

Mr.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2024
(Amount in Nu.)
Particular Note December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Revenue
Income from sale of electricity 26 22,973,612,369 16,234,652,283
Income from construction contracts 27: 195,217,535 2,287,412,240
Wheeling charges 1,595,343,159 1,318,531,303
Other income 28 334,468,120 367,908,472
Total Revenue 25,098,641,183 20,208,504,298
Expenditure
Purchase of electricity 16,645,056,462 11,286,825,307
Constrthon material consumed and sub- 173,195,098 2207,009,667
contracting charges
Operation and maintenance expenses 29 490,494,928 518,761,902
Employee benefit expenses 30 1,782,227,897 1,383,187,356
Finance costs 31 1,024,465,676 1,019,650,615
?r:):ts)/ (gain) on foreign currency fluctuation (271,516,534) (121,604,217)
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,880,901,625 1,774,404,337
Other expenses 32 378,524,574 318,510,856
Total Expenditure 22,103,349,727 18,386,745,822
Profit before income tax 2,995,291,456 1,821,758,475
Tax expenses
- Current tax (2024) 965,429,580 424,468,758
- Deferred tax 21 254,677,272 146,773,393
- Tax Adjustment of earlier years 66,586,401 104,832,309
Net Profit for the year 1,708,598,203 1,145,684,017
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gains/ (loss) 13,112,292 (33,050,227)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,721,710,495 1,112,633,790
Earnings Per Share 33 152.59 102.25

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited:

Ms. Tashi Rinzing Schmidt, CPA
Audit Partner

CPA License No. 34762
Date: 3/ 14 [ 025

Chief Executiv¢ Offi

For Bhutan Power Corporation Limited:

Mr=Chencho T.Namgay
Chairperson, BARC

\

Ms.
Director, #SD

50



1321330 2ATUMDIXY JITYD
£alqo], ureuog "IN

uenyg ‘nydwny], 208 ]
STo¥ bl /2. PeQ
C9LY€ "ON 9SUa0l'] VIO

.=t
Q
=
E
—
=
S
E=)
o
=
S
a
—
S
O
S
[
2
o
=
=
<
=
5
=
s

IouIR ] PNy

DUV ‘uosrodirey) ao4q ‘vosradgrey) VdD Ipruydg Surzury nyse, ‘s
AeBureNy 1, oyduayD) I P Suesay] AN

:pajrur] uorjerodio)) MO ueinyg 10 :pajIwr] deALL] [eIduRUL] SUrZury I0J

‘sajou Surdueduwrodoe ayj yrm uondunfuod ur pear aq prnoys Ambyg ur saduey) jo jusurajeig aaoqe Ay,

L6£8P8THL9T | (8LT'86%°81C) L18°091°See 6L1°CL9'LES'S 6L6'€TSL6L'TL $20T ‘T€ 1quIada(J je se aoueeq

(069°07¢°250'D) | - (069°0¥€°250'D) | - €20 Teak ayy 10 SpUSPIAL(] JO JusWAe ]

(9z6°8T1°€) . e : (9z6'821°€) Iajsuen) puey jo uaunsnlpy

:SISUMO 31} [[}IM UO)desueL],

- C6S'14L°CL (5651£2CT) - JAIISY Juaooe[day 19SSy 0} Idjsuelr],

(€9€°6L¥9) - - (€9¢'6£¥'9) 5 yuaunsnfpy porrad 1011

T6TTIT'EL % 5 = ured feuenjoy

:(ssof)/ourodur aarsuayprdurod YO

€0T°869°80L°T | - : €0T'86S'80L'T | - 1ea£ ayj 103 J1j01d N

188980°£80°9T | (04S°019°T£T) TT6'88€'CIT $29'999°506'Y S06'T¥9°00C'TL $20T ‘I Arenue( je se duefeq

£ymbq [e101 (sassoy)/sured JAIISY sSurures ST 210N 13394
: [EIIeNOY juaurade[day 19ssy paure;ay resded areyg Aymbyg

(‘MN U1 Junoury’)

$20¢ ‘1€ MAANADAA AAANT ¥VAX FHL ¥O4 ALINOA NI SIONVHD 10 INTWALV.LS
A4 LINIT NOILLVIOJdIOD ¥dMOd NV.IL.NHA

paiwr 1AL [epueury Surzury

51




Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

BHUTAN POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

Rinzing Financial Private Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

(Amount in Nu.)
Particular December 31, 2024 | December 31, 2023
Cash flows from / (used in) operating
activities
Profit-before income tax 2,995,291,456 1,821,758,475
Adjustments for:

.| Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,880,901,625 1,774,404,337
Loss on disposal of property, plant and 33,480,003 105,352,002
equipment
Interest expenses on borrowings 951,750,828 919,965,543
Interest income - (5,925,048)
Unwu‘ldmg of dlsf:ount on retention, security 72,714,348 99,685,071
deposit & borrowings
Prevision for doubtful debts - -
Provision on Obsolescence of Material 1,443,881 (2,506,330)
Prior period adjustment (6,479,363) (383,210,026)
Liabilities no longer required written back (2,531,165) (18,290,184)
Amortization of deferred grants (66,802,690) (66,802,690)
Amortization of deferred customer
L (14,384,607) (13,597,008)
Operating profit before working capital 5,845,384,817 4,230,834,145
changes
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories 226,656,890 (247,815,420)
Increase in amounts due from customers for 117,825,397 306,507,493
contract work
Dec1:ease / (Increase) in trade and other (149,332,777) (649,262,845)
receivables
Decrease / (Increase) in current and non- (240,523,035) 500,110,925
current assets
Increase in long-term and short-term loans and (14,319,844) 4,038,119
advances
Decrease in amounts due to customers for 59,518,359 (1,145,830,279)
contract work
Increase in trade and other payables (67,740,427) 938,416,335
(Decreas.e) / . I.n.crease in other current & non- 73,038,348 106,532,920
current liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provision (2,713,088) 190,515,428
Net cas'h generated from operating activities 5,847.794,640 4,234,046,821
before income tax
Income tax paid, net of refunds received (947,215,080) (298,625,296)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,900,579,560 3,935,421,525
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Repayment of Borrowings
Interest paid

(1,463,817,572)
(413,820,776)

(Amount in Nu.)

Particular December 31, 2024 | December 31, 2023
Cash used in investing activities
Purcha.se of property, plant and equipment and (5,880,170,642) (2,022,700,614)
Intangible assets
Receipt of deferred grants - -
S P i

o PIOpEty. B (123,078,246) (337,036,990)
equipment
Redemption of bank term deposits (net) (107,287,074) -
Interest received 28,868,263 56,996,512
Net cash used in investing activities (6,040,213,096) (2,300,708,039)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowings 3,323,264,212 905,490,807

(412,767,605)
(324,829,102)

Payment of dividend on ordinary shares (1,057,340,690) (806,687,403)
Payment of Finance cost-Lease (4,738,369) (3,158,220)
Share Capital (MHPA ATS Capitalization) (3,128,926) 43,140,905
Ne.t c'a.sh generated from/use in financing 380,417,880 (598.810,618)
activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (759,215,657) 1,035,902,867
5:::1 and cash equivalents at beginning of the 1.311,339,683 397,041,032
Loss/ (gain) on foreign currency fluctuation (271,516,534) (121,604,217)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 280,607,493 1,311,339,683

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited:

T
Ms. Tashi Rinzing Schmidt, CPA
Audit Partner
CPA License No. 34762
Date: Z/14] 2025
Place: Thimphu, Bhutan
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1.  General Information

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited (‘Company’) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Druk
Holding & Investments (DHI), A Royal Government of Bhutan undertaking. The Company
has been incorporated and registered under The Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016 with limited
liability. The registered office of the Company is located at, Bhutan.

The Company is engaged in the supply of electricity to the residents of the Kingdom of Bhutan
and wheeling of electricity from the large Hydropower Plants in Bhutan for export to India.
The Company also carries out business of construction of electricity project and distribution
network system.

The Company owns, operates and maintains the entire electricity transmission and
distribution network in the Kingdom of Bhutan. Apart from construction of distribution
network system, the Company is also mandated to construct the associated Transmission
Lines and Substations required for evacuation of power from Hydropower Plants to the
Bhutan-India border.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024, were
authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated March
5, 2025. The Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with and are fully
compliant with the Bhutanese Accounting Standards (BAS), except as stated otherwise in the
financial statements.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared
in accordance and to comply with the Bhutanese Accounting Standards and the relevant
provisions of The Companies Act of Bhutan, 2016.

These financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting with the
historical cost convention and going concern basis except as stated otherwise in the Financial
Statements. The preparation of the Financial Statements requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities may differ from the estimates. In areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Foreign currency translation

i)  Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates referred to as the “functional
currency”. The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Bhutanese
Ngultrum.
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ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if,
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost can be measured reliably.

Property, plant, and equipment are initially recognized at historical cost. The historical cost of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the fair value of the asset at the date of
acquisition and comprises its net purchase price after deducting for any trade discount and
rebates, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (Refer note 2.13 below for
accounting policy of borrowing cost). The cost of self-constructed assets not put to use and
advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
Statement of Financial Position date, are disclosed as Capital work-in-progress.

Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent
expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Spare parts and servicing equipment are normally treated as inventory and expensed as
consumed. However, major spare parts and stand-by equipment are treated as property, plant
and equipment when they are expected to be used during more than one year. Also, where
the spares parts or servicing equipment can only be used in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives. Freehold land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful
life whereas leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line method over the primary term of
the lease.

The Company has based on evaluahon performed by the techmcal Department estabhshed

as follows:
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Buildings 30 years
Generation Civil works 30 years
Transmission assets 30 years
Distribution assets 30 years
Computer equipment 5 years
\Vehicles 6.67 years
Furniture and Fixtures : 10 years
Office equipment 5 years

Significant parts of property, plant and equipment which are required to be replaced at
intervals and have specific useful lives are recognized and depreciated separately.

The useful life, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
appropriately, at least at each Statement of Financial Position date to ensure that the method
and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits.
Change in the estimated useful life, residual value and / or depreciation method, if any, is
depreciated prospectively over the asset’s remaining revised useful life.

The cost and the accumulated depreciation for property, plant and equipment sold, scrapped,
retired, disposed of or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use, are derecognized from the financial statements. The gains and losses are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include identifiable capitalized software costs and are recognized at cost of
acquisition/implementation less accumulated amortisation and any other provision for
impairment losses. Subsequent costs are included only when it is probable that the item
associated with the cost will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be reliably
measured.

Internally generated intangible assets are recognized only when the asset created can be
identified and it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits and
the costs can be measured reliably. Otherwise, the expenditure is charged to profit and loss
for the year of incurring the expenditure.

Amortisation is calculated and recognized using the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life as estimated by the management.

The useful lives and the amortization methods are reviewed annually and are adjusted as
appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognized as a change in the
accounting estimate.

An intangible asset is derecognized when disposed of or when no future benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gains and losses are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each Statement of Financial Position date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired based on internal or external factors. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the assets. If the carrying
amount of asset/cash generating unit exceeds the recoverable amount on the reporting date,
the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
measured as the higher of the net selling price and the value in use determined by the present
value of estimated future cash flows.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit and loss section of Statement of Comprehensive
Income except for assets previously revalued, where the revalued amount is taken to Other
Comprehensive Income (the ‘OCI’). For such assets, the impairment is recognized in OCI up
to the amount of previous revaluation.

Income tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recoverable from or payable to the Income tax authority based on the current period’s
taxable income. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date by the Income Tax Authority.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences except
when the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized, except when the deferred income tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the Company intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on net basis. Management evaluates positions taken in income tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable income tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. A\ PR
o

The income tax liabilities are recognized when, despite the Company’s belief that it:
tax return positions are supportable, the Company believes, it is more likely than n
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on the technical merits, that certain positions may not be fully sustained upon review by
income tax authorities. Benefits from tax positions are measured at the single best estimate of
the most likely outcome.

At each Statement of Financial Position date, the tax positions are reviewed, and to the extent
that new information becomes available which causes the Company to change its judgment
regarding the adequacy of existing income tax liabilities, such changes to income tax liabilities
are duly recognized in income tax expense in the year in which such determination is made.

Interest and penalties, if any, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are
included in income tax charge for the year in which the assessment is completed.

Financial Instruments

(i) Financial Assets

(a) Initial recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(b) Classification and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company are classified in
the following categories:

a. Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
b. Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI);
and
c. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
The classification of financial assets depends on the Company’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost:
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

- Business Model Test: The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets for collecting contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the asset prior to its financial
maturity to realize its fair value changes); and

- Cash Flow Characteristics Test: Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in Interest income in the profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables, bank fixed deposits, security deposits, cash and cash
equivalents and employee loans, etc.

(2) Financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI):

A financial instrument shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensf

if both of the following conditions are met:
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- Business Model Test: The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- Cash Flow Characteristics Test: The Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI).

Financial instruments included within FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting period at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI). The category generally applies to Unquoted - Other
Investments held by the Company.

(3) Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit and loss:

Fair value through profit and loss is the residual category. Any financial instrument which
does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income is classified at FVTPL. Financial instruments included within FVTPL
category are measured initially as well as at each reporting period at fair value. Fair value
movements are recorded in statement of comprehensive income.

(c) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment of financial assets, based on expected credit loss model as
per BFRS-9 provides that impairment of financial assets will be done. Accordingly, the
Company assesses at the end of each reporting period, whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired, and in that case the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the assets is reduced through Provisions / Allowance for Impairment Loss
Account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed by adjusting the Provisions / Allowance for Impairment Loss Account, to the extent
the impairment loss was previously recognized on the respective asset. The amount of such
reversal is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(d) Derecognition of financial assets

(e) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s
statement of financial position) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been expired/ transferred, or

b. The Company retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.

When the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has substantially
transferred all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial
asset is derecognized. When the Company has not transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.

When the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all ris
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the e
has not retained control of the financial asset. When the entity retains control of the fin
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asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the
asset.

(ii) Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities
include trade and other payables and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in BFRS 9 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in other comprehensive income. These gains/losses are not
subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial Liability at Amortized cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost represented by trade and other payables, security
deposits and retention money are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate.

Borrowings

Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the repayment amount is
recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations incurred by the Company towards purchase of
electricity and other goods and availing the services that have been acquired or availed in the
ordinary course of business. Trade and other payables are classified under current liabilities,
if payment is due within 12 months as at Statement of Financial Position date, if not, they are
classified under non-current liabilities. They are recognized initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
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modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances and deposits, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and that are readily
convertible to known amount of cash and cash equivalent and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventories
Inventory consists of stores and spares held for operation and maintenance and use in
construction of an asset.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average cost formula and comprises cost of purchases and other incidental
expenses incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing them to their existing location and
condition.

As per DHI group accounting policies and BAS 2 requirement, the valuation of inventories
should be based on the lower of cost or net realizable value. However, in the case of BPC,
where inventories consist of unique items not readily available in the domestic market, the
purchase cost is assumed as the net realizable value.

Asset Replacement Reserve
Reserve created to mitigate the risk of assets of the Company against any damages due to
natural calamities.

Grants

Grants from Government and Non-Government sources are recognized where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be
complied with.

Grants relating to expense items are recognized as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the related costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. The
unallocated portion of such grant is presented as part of Deferred Grants in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Grants related to non-current assets are treated as Deferred Income in the Statement of
Financial Position and are recognized to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the related assets.

Grant received as compensation for expenses/losses already incurred or with no future
related costs is recognized as income in the year it is received or becomes receivable.

Customer’s Contribution for network construction / expansion
Contribution received from customers towards the construction / extension of distribution
network / assets at the customer’s site is treated as Deferred Customer’s Contribution in the
Statement of Financial Position and is recognized to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
on a systematic basis over the useful life of the related distribution network / assets and the
distribution network / assets are capitalised under Property, plant and equipment. o
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Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that Company incurs in connection with

the borrowing of funds.

General and specific borrowing costs (net of investment income on temporary investment of
those borrowings) that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the costs of the asset, until such time the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale, which
is two years or more as decided by the Company keeping in view the nature of assets and past
trend of time taken for their completion.

All other borrowing costs are charged as expense to Statement of Comprehensive Income in
the period they occur.

Employee benefit liabilities
Contribution to Provident Fund administered by National Pension and Provident Fund is
charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income as and when they fall due.

Retirement benefit liabilities are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

Gratuity, Travel Allowance and Separation Allowance are provided for based on actuarial
valuation as at the Statement of Financial Position date. Retirement benefit liabilities are
discounted to present value applying the pre-tax rate of return on Government bonds of
similar tenure and currency. Increase in the liability due to passage of time is recognized as
interest expense. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they arise.

Further, the contribution towards the gratuity liability is invested in fixed deposits with the
banks.

The expected cost of Performance Based Variable Pay is recognized as an expense when there
is a legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance
and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Revenue Recognition

Accounting Policy

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Description of
performance obligations are as follows:

Wheeling Charges
Wheeling charges are accounted on the basis of periodic billing to the power generating
companies at the tariff rates approved by the Bhutan Electricity Authority. Input Method is
used to recognize revenue after adjustment for line loss.

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited
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Sale of Electricity

Revenue attributable to sale of electricity is accounted for as per tariff rates approved by
Bhutan electricity authority on the basis of billing to consumer under the billing cycle followed
by the company including interest on delayed payment. Revenue is recognized as electricity
is delivered and consumed by customers. Revenue also includes subsidy claims from royal
government of Bhutan. Electricity delivered and consumed by customers for which bill has
not been raised at the end of the reporting period is estimated and revenue is recognized
accordingly as unbilled revenue.

Construction Contracts

Revenue from a Contract to provide services is recognized over time based on Input method
where the extent of progress towards completion is measured based on the ratio of costs
incurred to date to the total estimated costs at completion of performance obligation. Revenue,
including estimated fees or profits, are recorded proportionally based on measure of progress.
Output method where direct measurements of value to the customer based on surveys of
performance completed to date.

Liquidated damages and penalties

Liquidated damages and penalties occur when contractors/suppliers fail to meet the key
performance indicators set out in their contract with the Company. Income resulting from
claims for liquidated damages and penalties are recognized as other income when all
performance obligations are met (including when a contractual entitlement exists), it can be
reliably measured and it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company.

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Interest income from debt instruments is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.
Earnings per share (‘EPS’)

The Company presents the basic and diluted EPS data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the ordinary shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the net profit for the year attributable to the ordinary
shareholders and by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Dividends
Dividends (including interim dividends) to ordinary shareholders is recognized as a liability
and deducted from shareholders’ equity in the period in which the dividends are
recommended by the Board of Directors and approved by the ordinary shareholders in the
Annual General Meeting.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities

a) The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation arising as result of
past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation, at the balance sheet date and are not
discounted to its present value.

b) A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a present obligation arising
as a result of past event that probably will not require an outflow of resources or where a
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Lease

BPC recognizes a lease as a lease liability and a right-of-use asset if the lease transfers the right
to control the use of an underlying asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
The lease liability should be measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the balance sheet date. The right-of-use asset should be measured at cost, which is
equal to the lease liability, plus any initial direct costs incurred, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset should be depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
the useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease that do not meet the recognition criteria will continue as operating lease and shall
be recognized in statement of Profit and Loss and disclosed accordingly.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements.
Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could differ
materially from these estimates. Changes in estimates are recorded in the year in which they
become known.

Actual results may differ from management’s estimates if these results differ from historical
experience or other assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate, even if such
assumptions were reasonable when made.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the date of statement of
financial position, or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about
conditions existing as at the statement of financial position date.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying values of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

i) Useful lives of property, plant, and equipment

The costs of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
respective useful lives. Management estimates the useful lives of these assets as detailed in
the accounting policy vide note 2.3. Changes in the expected level of usage, technological
developments, level of wear and tear could impact the economic useful lives and the residual
values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised and could have
an impact on the profit in future years.

ii) Fair Value measurement of Financial Instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement o

N
Financial Position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their f, %@V
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value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF)
model etc. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.
Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

iii) Retirement benefit obligations

The costs of retirement benefits and present value of the retirement benefit obligations are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, retirement benefit
obligations are sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

iv) Unbilled revenue

The unbilled revenue is calculated using average of last three months consumption for the
Low voltage consumer. This is consistent with the revenue recognition methodology adopted
in prior years and reflects the billing profile of the customers. Actual electricity usage could
differ from those estimates.
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BHUTAN POWER CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

W\

Rinzing Financial Private Limited

Particulars 2024 2023
NP ratio 6.80% 5.67%
Fixed Assets Turnover Ratio (Sales/ Average Net Block) 0.689 0.580
Debtors Turnover Ratio (Energy Sales/ Average Debtors) 7.845 8.753
Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities) 0.794 0.983
Quick Ratio (Current Asset-Inventory/Current Liabilities) 0.65 0.791
Interest Coverage Ratio (Profit before interest & tax/Interest) 3.924 2.787
De.bt .Serv1ce Coverage Ratio ( PAT+Dep+Interest/ (Interest + 3981 2834
Principal Repayment)
Gearing Ratio (Debt /Gross Value of Fixed Asset) 39.25% 37.37%
Gearing on net Fixed asset 56.55% 52.61%
Debt Equity Ratio (Debt/average Equity) 127.80% | 116.64%
I?ett‘ujn on Capital Employed (EBIT/(Capital+Reserve+long term 10.77% 8.04%
liability)
Return on asset (Profit after tax)/average net total assets 4.69% 3.29%
10.41% 7.11%

Return on equity ( return available / Average Equity)

For Rinzing Financial Private Limited:

Ms. Tashi Rinzing Schmidt, CPA
Audit Partner

CPA License No. 34762

Date: >/ \G/2eoQs

Place: Thimphu, Bhutan
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1. INVENTORY DISCREPANCIES AND CAPITALIZATION ISSUES AT STORAGE
LOCATION 0016 (PLANT THD1)

Project Information

Project Name : Construction of 33kV D/C Line using ACSR (Wolf)
Conductor from 132/33kV Yurmoo substation to Project
Site, Samcholing

Project Completion Date : 10/27/2022

Asset Code per SAP: : 16549

Asset Name per SAP : 33kV D/C Wolf Cond. from Yurmoo SS to Semcholing

Upon reviewing the inventory records and associated project details for the construction of
the 33kV D/C Line using ACSR (Wolf) Conductor from the 132/33kV Yurmoo Substation to
the Project Site in Samcholing, we identified several discrepancies that impact the accuracy of
inventory balances and capitalization.

As of December 31, 2024, the total inventory balance at Storage Location 0016 amounted to
Nu. 1,815,631.64. The discrepancies identified are categorized as follows:

SL. Obe Resolved
N Amount No. Issues and moved
: to MAR
1 75,523.59 | 1.1 | Inventories used during the project but Yes
omitted from capitalization o
2 3,221.65 | 1.2 | Reclassification of mistakenly capitalized Yes
asset as inventory =
3 1,711,986.4 | 1.3 | Missing inventories or unaccounted No
transfers to RSD, Gelephu
4 24,900 | 1.4 | Unidentified account balances Yes
Total 1,815,631.64

These discrepancies, as observed between SAP records and physical inventories, are detailed
as follows:
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Rinzing Financial Private Limited

1.3. MISSING INVENTORIES AND UNACCOUNTED TRANSFERS TO RSD,
GELEPHU [7.2.17]

After the completion of the project, the contractor returned the unused inventories to BPCL.
The cost of incomplete and missing inventories was recovered from the contractor, while the
remaining complete and usable inventories were officially handed over to BPCL as per the
handover document dated December 14, 2022.

The inventories were then physically transferred to the Regional Stores Division (RSD),
Gelephu. However, the transfer could not be updated in SAP due to discrepancies between
the physical stock and SAP records. As a result:

SAP still reflects these inventories at their original storage location, despite their

physical transfer.

A physical verification at RSD, Gelephu revealed that some of the transferred

inventories were missing, amounting to Nu. 1,283,878.16.

The discrepancies have prevented the completion of SAP updates, resulting in an
overstatement of inventory balances at the original location and an unaccounted

reduction at RSD, Gelephu.

The table below details the missing inventory items:

(Amount in Nu.)
Per
Code Material Description Per SAP* Physical Difference
Verification
295 | Preform termination - 150sqmm 30,780.00 - 30,780.00
296 | Guy preform for 7/8 SWG wire 11,484.00 11,484.00 -
344 | Mid span Jointing Sleeve (Wolf) 2,386.35 - 2,386.35
352 | P.G.Clamp (Wolf) 76,120.00 - 76,120.00
378 | Guy Insulator 14,302.65 9,731.70 4,570.95
381 | 33 kV Pin Insulator 319,928.67 10,731.36 | 309,197.31
486 | G.I.Wire 8 SWG 2,578.83 - 2,578.83
490 | Gl stay wire 7/8SWG 113,071.96 87,321.09 25,750.87
514 | Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 kV) 2,416.00 - 2,416.00
517 | Spike Earthing 51,478.68 - 51,478.68
552 | GI stay set assembly 85,675.52 45,515.12 40,160.40
555 | GI Eye Hook 16mm Dia 250 mm Long 74,880.00 74,880.00 -
993 | Anti-climbing Device 5,401.20 4,861.08 540.12
1272 | 33kV Polymer Strain insulator 348,040.00 - 348,040.00
assembly
1501 | Preform deadend termination-shield 7,347.12 7,013.16 333.96
wire
2088 | GI stranded Earth Shield Wire 7/2 mm 34,519.43 - 34,519.43
5586 | Galvanized Cross arm assly H-frame 31,772.67 31,772.67 -
©)
5587 | Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 367,908.78 141,999.88 225,908.90
5593 | Galvanised Stay Clamp for HT 8,394.54 2,798.18 5,596:36 1
5808 | GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 12m 123,500.00 - | 1235388700
1,711,986.40 |  428,108.24 | 1,283/878.
* - s 5 (D 3 2
The SAP records and the handover report reflect the same quantity of items. é‘ %%) >
’%/ i
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Since SAP does not match the actual physical inventory, these discrepancies require urgent
reconciliation to ensure accurate financial reporting and inventory control.

Recommendation:

e Immediate Reconciliation of SAP Records and Physical Inventory
Conduct a joint reconciliation involving BPCL’s Finance, Procurement, and Warehouse teams
to compare SAP records, handover documents, and the physical stock at RSD, Gelephu.

Identify and document the reasons for the stock discrepancies, including potential losses,
misallocation, or unrecorded transfers.

Update SAP to reflect the actual inventory status at each location.

e Formal Investigation of Missing Inventories
Initiate an internal review to determine whether the missing inventories were misplaced, lost,
or unaccounted for during the transfer process.
If necessary, recover losses through appropriate measures, including contractor liability or
internal responsibility checks.

Management Response:

AUC 49473 Details and Recovery from Contractor.
After the capitalization of 33kV line at Samchholing, Trongsa, the spare materials were added to AUC
number 49473 under TPO, Changedaphu amounting to Nu. 1,906,372.89.

However, the contractor didn’t return materials worth Nu. 194,386.48 to the project office,
Samchholing. So, a total of Nu. 291,579.73 (150% of the total cost) were recovered from the contractor.

The cost of the remaining materials in the AUC amounts to Nu. 1,711,986.41.

Material Material Description Oty Rate | Unit Amount
295 Preform termination - 150sqmm 81 380.00 | NO 30,780.00
296 Guy preform for 7/8 SWG wire 33 348.00| NO 11,484.00
344 Mid span Jointing Sleeve (Wolf) 5 47727 | NO 2,386.35
352 P.G.Clamp (Wolf) 346 220.00 | NO 76,120.00
378 Guy Insulator 97 14745 | NO 14,302.65
381 33 kV Pin Insulator 477 670.71 | SET 319,928.67
486 G.I.Wire 8 SWG 29.55 8727 | KG 2,578.83
490 GI stay wire 7/8SWG 1,264.08 89.45| KG 113,071.96
514 Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 16 151.00 | NO 2,416.00

kV)
517 Spike Earthing 59 872:52.| SET. 51,478.68
552 GI stay set assembly 64| 1,338.68 | SET 85,675.52
555 GI Eye Hook 16mm Dia 250 mm Long 96 780.00 | SET 74,880.00
993 Anti-climbing Device 10 540.12 | NO 5,401.20
1272 33kV Polymer Strain insulator 308 | 1,130.00 | SET 348,040.00
assembly
1501 Preform deadend termination-shield 66 111.32 | NO 7,347.12
wire
2088 GI stranded Earth Shield Wire 7/2 1.910 | 18,073.00 | KM 34,519.43
mm

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited
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Material Material Description Qty Rate | Unit Amount

5586 Galvanized Cross arm assly H-frame 3110590.89 | SET 31,772.67
©)

5587 Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 57| 6,454.54| SET 367,908.78

5593 Galvanised Stay Clamp for HT 42 199.87 | NO 8,394.54

5808 GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 4130,875.00 | SET 123,500.00
12m

TOTAL | 1,711,986.40

Conversion of AUC to Inventory.
The AUC (49473) amount needed to be converted into inventory in order to systematically issue the
materials from TPO, Changedaphu storage location to other offices.
With the support from officials from SUIT, the AUC cost was successfully converted to inventory and
now lies in the storage location of TPO, Changedaphu (Refer Table 1 for the details).

Out of the missing materials reported as difference in the observation with value of Nu. 1,283,878.16
incomplete materials worth Nu. 630,809.32 have been returned by the project office to RSD as shown
in the table below. The balance materials worth Nu. 653,068.84 shall be reconciled, updated in the SAP

by the concerned project officials and shall hand over physically to the RSD.

Incomplete
Code Material Description Difference (handed over Missing
to RSD)
295 Preform termination - 150sqmm 30,780.00 30,780.00 0.00
296 | Guy preform for 7/8 SWG wire -
344 | Mid span Jointing Sleeve (Wolf) 2,386.35 954.54 1,431.81
352 | P.G.Clamp (Wolf) 76,120.00 4,840.00 71,280.00
378 | Guy Insulator 4,570.95 4570.95
381 | 33 kV Pin Insulator 309,197.31 3353.55 305,843.76
486 | G.IL.Wire 8 SWG 2,578.83 2,578.83
490 Gl stay wire 7/8SWG 25,750.87 25,750.87
514 Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 2,416.00 1963 453.00
kV)
517 | Spike Earthing 51,478.68 | 51,478.68
552 | Gl stay set assembly 40,160.40 38821.72 1,338.68
555 GI Eye Hook 16mm Dia 250 mm Long -
993 | Anti-climbing Device 540.12 540.12
1272 | 33kV  Polymer Strain insulator 348,040.00 | 212,440.00 135,600.00
assembly
1501 | Preform deadend termination-shield 333.96 333.96
wire
2088 Gl stranded Earth Shield Wire 7/2 34,519.43
nin
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Incomplete
Code Material Description Difference (handed over Missing
to RSD)

5586 | Galvanized Cross arm assly H-frame =
©)

5587 | Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 225,908.90 | 154,908.96 70,999.94

5593 | Galvanised Stay Clamp for HT 5,596.36 3,197.92 2,398.44
5808 | GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 123,500.00 | 123,500.00 0.00
12m

1,283,878.16 | 630,809.32 653,068.84

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

For the materials listed incomplete set amounting to Nu. 630,809.32 items, the Management will form
a team and assign the tasks to make the items in complete set after the proper assessment. For those
items that can’t be made in complete set, further assessment on their usage will be done with proper
valuation of the items. Regarding the missing items amounting to Nu.653,068.84, re-verification and
reconciliation will be carried out accordingly by the same team as recommended by the auditor.
Necessary treatment shall be carried out by the department as per the company norms. The action taken
report on the same will be submitted to RAA latest by first quarter of fiscal year 2025. Considering the
above, it is requested to drop the observation.

Auditor’s Further Comments:

We acknowledge the management’s response and their commitment to resolving the identified issues.
As part of the Action Taken Report (ATR) for the RAA’s review, management is required to provide a
detailed report outlining the reconciliation and revaluation processes undertaken for the incomplete and
missing inventories. Additionally, management should ensure that all necessary adjustments are
accurately reflected in the SAP system to align with the physical stock records.

Who is accountable?

Direct Accountability- Name: Amrit Bdr. Limbu, Designation: Associate Engineer, CID:
11204000983

Supervisory Accountability- Name: Tshering Wangchuk, Designation: Head, TOMU,
Yurmoo, CID: 10711001814
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1. OMISSION OF INVENTORIES FROM ASSET CAPITALIZATION [7.2.18]

During our inquiry with the focal person at BPCL, we identified three inventory items,
totaling Nu. 75,523.59, were issued to the contractor and utilized during construction.
However, these items were omitted from capitalization upon project completion.

The omission occurred because the physical transfer of these materials was not accurately
recorded in SAP, leaving them classified as "in transit" instead of being accounted for as part
of the capitalized assets. Despite their confirmed use in the project, their incorrect status in
SAP resulted in their exclusion from asset capitalization.

. : e Unit of : Amount
Code Material Description Moo Quantity (Nuw.)
514 | Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 kV) NO 190 18,617.83
514 | Danger plate (Medium voltage - 33 kV) NO 12 701.01
576 | ABS/LBS unit 33 kV (Three phase) SET 2 56,204.75
Total 75,523.59

This omission has understated depreciation expenses and asset balances since the
capitalization date (October 27, 2022) while simultaneously overstating inventory balances
in the financial records.

Recommendation:
To rectify the omission of inventories from asset capitalization and ensure accurate financial
reporting, we recommend the following actions:

e Immediate Capitalization Adjustment
The omitted inventory items, totaling Nu. 75,523.59, should be capitalized as part of the
project assets, effective from the original capitalization date.
Adjustments should be made in SAP and the financial statements to reflect the true value of
capitalized assets.

e Correction of Depreciation
Recalculate and adjust depreciation expenses from the capitalization date to account for the
previously omitted assets.

e Strengthening Inventory and Asset Transfer Processes
Implement a systematic review process to ensure that all materials issued for construction are
correctly recorded and capitalized.
Establish regular reconciliations between SAP records and physical stock to identify and
correct discrepancies in material status.
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Management Response:
The aforementioned materials were left out during the capitalization works. These materials were in
transit and unknowingly missed out. The same will be issued and added into the capital works this year.

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

Since the project was already capitalized on 27t October 2022, the value of the materials was seen as
not material compared to the overall value of the work. Hence, it was decided to expense off the said
materials in line BPC AMMR in fiscal year 2025 and accordingly the same shall be adjusted in the
P&L account of 2025. The system adjustment will be made latest by 28 February 2025.

It will also be ensured in future projects that all materials issued to the construction of an asset will be
correctly recorded and capitalized. Considering the above, it is requested to drop the observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:

As the adjustment is considered immaterial and does not impact the financial statements for the period
ending December 31, 2024, we acknowledge management's assurance that the necessary adjustments
will be completed by February 28, 2025. Accordingly, this observation is considered resolved.

Compliance to be made by management:
In line with management’s commitment to making the necessary adjustments in 2025, the accuracy
and completeness of these adjustments will be reviewed during the subsequent audit.
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2. RECLASSIFICATION OF MISTAKENLY CAPITALIZED ASSET AS INVENTORY
[7.2.37]

During our review, we identified inventory items that were mistakenly capitalized as assets.
These items were never issued to the contractor for construction and remained physically
stored at BPCL throughout the project. However, their entire value was incorrectly included
in asset capitalization, even though they were not actually used in construction.

Since these inventories were still present in BPCL’s stores, the management, through Note
Sheet 09/BPC/TPO/2024/Vol-1/214 dated November 4, 2024, decided to reclassify these
items from capitalized assets to inventory. This reclassification was intended to properly
account for these materials in SAP and allow their future utilization.

However, the reclassification was conducted at an incorrect rate of Nu. 1 per item instead of
their actual cost, resulting in a discrepancy of Nu. 14,989,784.38 between the recorded and

actual values, as detailed below:
(Amounts in Nu.)

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

Code Material Description '»‘Pes'l'.h?;t»e Recalculation | Difference
352 | P.G.Clamp (Wolf) 153.00 33,660.00 33,507.00
486 | G.I.Wire 8 SWG 491.25 42,871.41 42,380.16
493 | Anti- climbing device (156.1 mm) 256.00 138,240.00 137,984.00
517 | Spike Earthing 4.00 3,490.08 3,486.08
552 | GI stay set assembly 257.00 344,040.76 343,783.76
555 | GI Eye Hook 16mm Dia 250 mm Long 838.00 653,640.00 652,802.00
1272 | 33kV Polymer Strain insulator 614.00 693,820.00 693,206.00
assembly
1987 | 33kV Polymer Pin Insulator Assembly 332.00 215,800.00 215,468.00
5587 | Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 197.00 1,271,544.38 | 1,271,347.38
5808 | GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 12m 357.00 | 11,022,375.00 | 11,022,018.00
Galvanised cross arm assembly H- 21.00 244,650.00 244,629.00
Frame
CT/PT 300/200/1A 33kV 1.00 165,000.00 164,999.00
CT/PT 300/150/1A 33kV 1.00 164,175.00 164,174.00
Total 3,522.25 | 14,993,306.63 | 14,989,784.38

Rates used for recalculation have been sourced from the SAP inventory balance for the sanie itens.

Impact of the Reclassification Error
Overstatement of Capitalized Asset Value: The mistakenly capitalized inventories

resulted in an inflated asset balance.

Understatement of Inventory Value: The reclassification at Nu. 1 per item
significantly undervalued inventory balances.

Overstatement of Depreciation Expense: Since these items were not used in the
construction, depreciation expenses for previous periods were incorrectly recorded.
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Furthermore, following the reclassification on November 4, 2024, some of these items were
subsequently issued to other stores, projects, or used for repairs and maintenance. However,
due to the incorrect reclassification at Nu. 1 per item, their issuance values were also

understated. This led to a discrepancy of Nu. 1,418,832.59 as shown below:

(Amounts in Nu.)

Code Material Description P(;xill:;te Recalculation | Difference
486 | G.I.LWire 8 SWG 9.60 837.79 828.19
493 | Anti- climbing device (156.1 mm) 16.00 8,640.00 8,624.00
552 | GI stay set assembly 156.00 208,834.08 | 208,678.08

1272 | 33kV Polymer Strain insulator assembly 72.00 81,360.00 81,288.00

5587 | Galvanized Cross brace arm assembly 8.00 51,636.32 51,628.32

5808 | GI Steel Tubular Pole 410-SP-65, 12m 16.00 494,000.00 | 493,984.00

Galvanised cross arm assembly H-Frame 21.00 244,650.00 244,629.00
CT/PT 300/200/1A 33kV 1.00 165,000.00 | 164,999.00
CT/PT 300/150/1A 33kV 1.00 164,175.00 | 164,174.00
Total 300.60 1,419,133.19 | 1,418,832.59

Rates used for recalculation have been sourced from the SAP inventory balance for the same items.

Recommendations:
e Immediate Adjustment of Reclassified Inventory Values
The management should update SAP to reflect the actual cost of reclassified inventory instead
of Nu. 1 per item.
The discrepancy of Nu. 14,989,784.38 should be corrected in financial records.

e Correction of Depreciation
The incorrectly capitalized assets have led to overstated depreciation expenses. A
reassessment should be conducted, and necessary adjustments should be made.

e Adjustment of Issued Inventory Values
The issued inventory from November 4 to December 31, 2024, should be revalued at actual
costs to correct the understatement of Nu. 1,418,832.59.

e Strengthening Internal Controls
Implement stricter validation processes to prevent incorrect capitalization of inventory items
in future projects.
Conduct regular reconciliation of physical stock with SAP records to ensure accurate financial
reporting.

Management Response:

Jamjee 33kV Spare materials.

The materials used for the construction of 33kV lines were purchased by the project office directly and
were booked in project services (Project WBS). The entire cost of the materials was capitalized where
the spare materials needed to be segregated.

After seeking approval from Director, CSD, the materials lying physically at the project site without
the inventories record of account, were taken in the stock inventory record at the rate of value 1.00.
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SL.No | Description Unit | Quantity | Rate | Amount | Valuation
p |42 MoudhTubila RoleBei = s | gy |y Y d5700 ['OCABREFUR
(including nuts and bolt)
2 33kv Polymer strain insulator Set 614 1 614.00 | O&M_REFUB
assembly
3 33 kV Polymer Pin insulator Set 332 1 332.00 | O&M_REFUB
4 Galvanised cross arm assembly Set 1 1 21.00 | O&M _REFUB
H-Frame
5 Galvanised cross brace arm Set 197 1 197.00 | O&M_REFUB
assembly
6 Gl stay set Set 257 1 257.00 | O&M_REFUB
7 Anti climbing Device Set 256 1 256.00 | O&M_REFUB
8 Spike Earthing Nos. 4 1 4.00 O&M_REFUB
9 GI wire 8swg kg 491.25 1 491.25 | O&M_REFUB
10 | CT/PT 300/200/1A 33kV Nos. 1 1 1.00 O&M_REFUB
11 CT/PT 300/150/1A 33kV Nos. 1 1 1.00 O&M_REFUB
12 GI eye Hook Nos. 838 1 838.00 | O6M_REFUB
13 PG clamp Wolf Set 153 1 153.00 | O5M_REFUB
TOTAL 3,522.25

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

Since these materials were purchased specifically as a spare for the Project, all the materials were
capitalized along with the project as per the BPC’s Accounting Manual 5.3.5.e, which states that all
the capital spares have to be capitalized. The value Nu.1 against each item quantity was specifically
assigned to trace the movement of balance inventory and also for the physical verification and further
to avoid duplication in amount booking when the materials are utilized. If the materials are assigned
their acquisition cost, it will lead to double booking of cost and also inflate the value of the assets.
Considering the abouve, it is requested to drop the observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge the management’s response and the rationale provided for capitalizing spare materials
in accordance with BPCL’s Accounting Manual (Section 5.3.5.e) and established practices. Based on
discussions during the Audit Exit Meeting, it was initially decided to move this observation to MAR
11, meaning the issue would not be pursued further in subsequent audits.

However, upon further consultation with the Royal Audit Authority (RAA) and subsequent
discussions with the Accounting & Auditing Standards Board of Bhutan (AASBB), we conclude that
while BPCL's internal manual allows for the capitalization of spares, this treatment is inconsistent with
BAS 2020, specifically BAS 16 (Property, Plant, and Equipment) and BAS 2 (Inventories):

o BAS 16.8 states that an item should be recognized as Property, Plant, and Equipment (PPE)
only if it is expected to be used in production or supply of goods and services, for
rental, or administrative purposes, and is expected to generate future economic
benefits.

e BAS 16.12 further clarifies that spare parts and servicing equipment are generally
classified as inventory and only capitalized if they meet the definition of PPE (i.e.,
they are used in the construction or maintenance of a specific asset and provide long-
term benefits).
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o BAS 2.6 defines inventories as assets held for sale, in the process of production, or
consuned in operations. Since the spare materials were never utilized for the construction
of assets and remained in stock for future use, they should have been classified as inventory
under BAS 2 rather than being capitalized as assets.

Given the significant volume of projects undertaken over the years, and the potential cumulative
misstatement in BPCL’s financial statements, retrospective corrections may not be feasible.
Accordingly, this observation is considered resolved.

Compliance to be made by management:

However, to ensure compliance with BAS 2020 going forward, BPCL must discontinue the
practice of capitalizing spare materials effective January 1, 2025, even if internal policies
allow it.

This issue is now noved to MAR I, meaning that subsequent audits will verify whether BPCL complies
with BAS 2020 on this matter. Failure to adhere to the correct accounting treatment from 2025
onward may result in a formal audit finding in future audits, potentially impacting the audit
opinion.

Management’s Further Response:

BPC acknowledges the recommendation made by the Auditors and to comply with BAS 2020,
specifically BAS 16 & BAS 2, going forward, BPC wouldn’t be capitalizing the capital spares to asset
but have it shown in inventories, if any prospectively.
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3. UNIDENTIFIED ITEM BALANCES [7.2.18]

During our review of the inventory records, we identified an item with a balance of Nu. 24,900
reflected under the same store in SAP. However, upon further inquiry, it was confirmed that
this item no longer exists physically. The details of the item are as follows:

o o Unit of : Amount
Code Material Description Meaare Quantity N
65 Arm. Al cable 3Cx300sqmm, XLPE Ins, 33kV M 249.00 24,900.00

Since this item does not physically exist, its presence in SAP results in an overstatement of
inventory balances.

We recommend that management conduct a thorough investigation to confirm the status of
this item. If it is determined to be non-existent, appropriate adjustments should be made to
SAP to remove the incorrect balance and ensure that the inventory records accurately reflect
the actual stock.

Management Response:

The material utilized for the special DHI works at Dagapela are still recorded in the inventory of project
plant THD1 and have not been updated in the system. The concerned project officials will adjust,
capitalize and correct the records in the SAP system accordingly.

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

Since the project was already capitalized on 23rd May 2023, the material amounting to Nu. 24,900.00
will be expensed off in fiscal year 2025 and accordingly the same shall be adjusted in P&L account of
2025. The system adjustment will be made latest by 28th February 2025. Considering the above, it is
requested to drop the observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:

As the adjustment is considered immaterial and does not impact the financial statements for the period
ending December 31, 2024, we acknowledge management's assurance that the necessary adjustments
will be completed by February 28, 2025. Accordingly, this observation is considered resolved.

Compliance to be made by management:
In line with management’s commitinent to making the necessary adjustments in 2025, the accuracy
and completeness of these adjustments will be reviewed during the subsequent audit.

145



Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

N\

Rinzing Financial Private Limited

4. LAND LEASE NOT ACCOUNTED FOR PER BFRS 16 [1.2.85]

BPCL has entered into lease agreements as a lessee for the lands listed below, but the treatment
for these leases has not been performed in accordance with the requirements of BFRS 16:
Leases.

According to BFRS 16, lessees are required to recognize lease liabilities and corresponding
right-of-use (ROU) assets for all leases, except for short-term leases (less than 12 months) and
low-value assets, on the balance sheet. The failure to account for these leases in compliance
with BFRS 16 results in the understatement of both liabilities and assets, which impacts the
financial statements and related disclosures.

The following land lease agreements have not been accounted for under BERS 16:

(Amount in Nu.)
SL Lease Name Initial Payment | Last Payment Lease Yearly Rent
No. Date Date Tenure Payment
1 | SRF - Tendruk, 29-May-2024 29-May-2033 10 5,880.60
Samtse
2 | SRF- 2-Feb-2023 1-Jan-2027 5 30,361.32
Endocholing,
Trongsa
3 | SL - Pasakha, 27-Oct-2023 27-Oct-2032 10 538,620.00
Phuentsholing
Recommendation:

o Immediate Recognition of Lease Liabilities and ROU Assets

Management should immediately recognize the lease liabilities and corresponding right-
of-use assets for the above land leases, based on the present value of future lease payments
as of the commencement date for each lease.

e Compliance with BFRS 16:

Management must ensure that future leases are properly accounted for in accordance with
BFRS 16 to avoid similar issues going forward. This includes updating internal procedures
to identify all leases and ensure timely recognition of lease liabilities and ROU assets.

e Restatement of Financial Statements:

If necessary, BPCL should restate prior period financial statements to reflect the
recognition of the lease liabilities and ROU assets for these land leases in compliance with
BERS 16.
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Management Response:
In response to your findings, we have taken the necessary steps to ensure compliance with BFRS 16.
Specifically, we have made the following entries:
1. Recognition of Right-of-Use (ROU) Assets:
We have recorded the ROU entries for the following assets:
o Asset Code 58038 for Pasakha, Phuentsholing RSD
o Asset Code 58039 for the Trongsa, Tintibi TOMS
e Asset Code 58040 for Tendruk, Samtse ESD

2. Lease Liabilities and ROU Entries:
We have recognized the lease liabilities and corresponding ROU entries under Document
Numbers 100100162, 100100163, and 100100164, dated January 1, 2024.

3. Depreciation for 2023:
We have accounted for depreciation for the year 2023 for the Pasakha, Phuentsholing asset and the
Trongsa, Tintibi office, documented under Document Numbers 2675 and 2676, dated January 1,
2024. As this depreciation pertains to the prior year, we have transferred the depreciation to
Retained Earnings, as reflected in Document Number 100100169, dated December 31, 2024.

4. Final Transactions for Lease Liability and Finance Cost for 2024:
The final transactions related to lease liability and finance costs for the year 2024 have been
recorded under Document Number 100100166, dated December 31, 2024.

We are committed to ensuring that all future leases are accounted for in accordance with BFRS 16 and
will continue to update our internal procedures to prevent similar issues from arising in the future.
Thank you for your guidance on this matter. Please let us know if you require any further information
or clarification.

The observation for land lease agreements that have not been accounted for under BFRS 16 is completed,
hence kindly requested to drop the observation/memo.

The memo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge management’s corrective actions in recognizing lease liabilities and Right-of-Use
(ROU) assets in compliance with BFRS 16. As the necessary adjustments have been made, this
observation is considered addressed.

Compliance to be made by management:

To ensure ongoing compliance, management should provide clear disclosures on corrective actions
taken and maintain proper documentation for future leases. The implementation of these measures will
be reviewed in subsequent audits.

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited
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5. DISCREPANCIES OF BOBL LOAN BALANCES AND OVERSTATEMENT OF
INTEREST EXPENSE [1.2.66]

A review of BPCL's loan balances as of December 31, 2024, identified discrepancies between
SAP records and loan statements issued by the Bank of Bhutan Limited (BOBL). The principal
amount in SAP was overstated by Nu. 7,038,542.14, while accrued interest was understated
by Nu. 397,521.93, leading to a total discrepancy of Nu. 6,641,020.21.

(Amount in Nu.)
December 31, 2024 Per SAP Per BOBL Difference Remarks
Principal Amount 650,908,068.39 | 643,869,526.25 7,038,542.14 | Overstatement
Accrued Interest 4,285,808.41 4,683,330.34 (397,521.93) | Understatement
Total Loan Amount | 655,193,876.80 | 648,552,856.59 6,641,020.21

Most of the above differences stem from prior-year periods, as similar variances were noted
as of December 31, 2023, with an overstatement of principal by Nu. 7,851,560.08 and an
understatement of accrued interest by Nu. 3,537,649.83.

(Amount in Nu.)
December 31, 2023 Per SAP Per BOBL Difference Remarks
Principal Amount 675,020,046.56 | 667,168,486.48 7,851,560.08 | Overstatement
Accrued Interest 4,313,910.25 7,851,560.08 | (3,537,649.83) | Understatement
Total Loan Amount | 679,333,956.81 | 675,020,046.56 4,313,910.25

The issue arises due to the following practices:

BPCL currently makes quarterly loan payments before the Bank of Bhutan Limited (BOBL)
finalizes the interest charge for the last month of the quarter. This timing difference results in
inconsistencies in how the principal and interest amounts are reduced.

Furthermore, the actual interest BOBL charges often differ from the estimates outlined in the
repayment schedule, which BPCL relies on for recording transactions. This practice
introduces discrepancies between BPCL's records and the bank’s actual charges.

Recommendations:
1. Prior Period Adjustments: BPCL should immediately adjust SAP loan balances to
align with BOBL's loan statements, ensuring prior-period discrepancies are corrected.

2. Accurate Interest Recording: Future interest payments should be recorded strictly
based on actual charges from BOBL to prevent continued mismatches.

3. Improved Payment Coordination: BPCL should coordinate with BOBL to ensure
payments are processed accurately, preferably by submitting a demand note directly
to the loan officer.

4. Ongoing Reconciliation: A structured reconciliation process should be implemented
to routinely verify and align SAP records with bank statements, preventing recurring
discrepancies.
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Management Response:

An adjustment entry of Nu. 7,038,542.14 was made on 31.12.2024, in consultation with the Auditors,
under document number 100100138, which involved debiting the BOB ATS loan account and crediting
the interest on the loan. The adjustment for the unpaid portion of interest as indicated in the report has
been made for the amount of Nu.397,521.93 via document number 1900000001.

BPC had been making the payment based on the projected schedule provided by BOB for the ATS loan.
Each payment, covering both principal and interest, was made via a forwarding letter on the scheduled
date. Howeuver, due to the floating interest rate, discrepancies were identified in the calculations from
the Bank'’s side. Since the reconciliation has been completed, proper consultation will be ensured before
the remittance of principal and interest payment. Therefore, it is requested to drop this observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge management’s corrective actions, including the adjustments made on December 31,
2024, to align SAP loan balances with the Bank of Bhutan Limited (BOBL) loan statements. As the
discrepancies identified in 2023 were material but have been addressed through corrections in 2024,
this observation is considered resolved.

Compliance to be made by management:

To ensure transparency, management should provide proper disclosures regarding these adjustments
in the financial statements. Additionally, we recommend establishing regular reconciliation processes
with BOBL to prevent similar discrepancies in the future. The implementation of these measures will
be monitored in subsequent audits.

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited
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6. FAILURE TO CLEAR AGED RETENTION MONEY (LIABILITY ACCOUNTS) OPEN
ITEMS [1.2.85]

BPCL'’s retention money liability accounts in SAP reflect a total created retention of Nu.
465,901,771.93, out of which Nu. 70,283,557.79 has been released. However, these released
amounts remain uncleared in SAP, indicating a significant backlog of aged open items.
Despite the company’s automated clearing process, manual intervention to resolve items that
remain uncleared has not been performed.

(Amount in Nu.)
Account Name Retention Created | Retention Released
Retention from Suppliers (298,404,220.84) 47,924,320.41
Retention from Contractors (43,119,722.23) 9,643,269.59
Retention from Others (124,377,828.86) 12,715,967.79
Total (465,901,771.93) 70,283,557.79

Risks Identified:
e Operational Inefficiencies: Aged open items complicate reconciliations and may lead
to financial misstatements.

e Reputational Risk: Unresolved retention money could result in disputes with
contractors and suppliers.

e Audit Trail Weakness: The failure to clear retention money weakens the audit trail,
making it difficult to verify transactions and increasing compliance risks.

Recommendations:
¢ Immediate Clearing of Aged Items: Conduct a detailed review and manually clear all
outstanding retention money balances.

e Strengthen Internal Controls: Establish a structured process for regular identification
and clearing of uncleared items that automation does not resolve.

e Enhanced Monitoring and Reporting: Implement periodic monitoring using SAP’s
aging reports and escalate unresolved items to management.

e Staff Training and Awareness: Train finance personnel on the importance of clearing
retention money and how to use SAP’s manual clearing functionalities effectively.

e Periodic Reconciliations: Conduct regular reconciliations of the retention money
account to ensure accuracy and completeness in financial reporting.
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Management Response:

The observation recorded for the Failure to Clear Aged Retention Money (Liability Accounts) which
has remained as an open items have been sorted and cleared in SAP. It will also be ensured that
henceforth, clearing of such items are monitored and reviewed on a regular basis. The details with
reasons are attached herewith in Annexure 1. Therefore kindly drop the observation related to it.

The memo has been treated as settled:
We acknowledge management’s response and the corrective actions taken to clear the aged retention
money open items in SAP. As the issue has been resolved, this observation is considered closed.

Compliance to be made by management:
To mitigate the risk of recurrence, management should ensure ongoing monitoring and timely clearance

of retention money balances. This observation has been moved to MAR I for continued oversight in
future audits.
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7. NON-COMPLIANCE WITH UNPAID CHEQUES POLICY [1.2.85]

BPCL has established policies and internal practices regarding the handling of unpaid
cheques to ensure proper financial reporting and compliance. However, we noted that
cheques totaling Nu. 766,105.54 have not been transferred to the appropriate accounts,
contrary to both the written policy and standard practice.

Policy Requirement:
As per Section 8.4.1 - General Guidelines, the following procedures must be followed for
unpaid cheques:
1. Cheques issued butnot presented within six months must be transferred to the Unpaid
Cheques Account, where they are recognized as a liability in the financial statements.

2. At the end of each reporting period, all stale cheques should be reviewed. Upon
obtaining approval from the competent authority, they should be transferred to the
Liabilities No Longer Required account and derecognized from the financial
statements.

Standard Practice at BPCL:

In addition to the written policy, BPCL follows a standard internal practice where the unpaid
cheques that remain under ‘Unpaid Cheques’ GL account for more than two years are
transferred to the ‘Liabilities No Longer Required’ account as income. These cheques are then
removed from the financial statements, as the obligation is deemed no longer payable.
Despite these established policies and practices, our review found that Nu. 766,105.54 worth
of unpaid cheques remains in the liabilities account without evidence of efforts to transfer
them to Liabilities No Longer Required, as per the required process.

Document | Document - Amount
Number  Date Ted el (Nu.)
100037683 | 8/23/2021 | Cheque more than six months 6,046.76
100037685 | 8/23/2021 | Cheque more than six months 54,600.00
100045721 | 8/25/2022 | Chq of KGUMSB against refund of d/work 687,353.12
100053287 9/14/2022 | 100019681 (Being refund of balance fund from 3,963.83
DW)
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1500008619(settlement of bills) 1,411.00
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1500011830(Sett. of Bill No. 3872 dt. 02. 2,695.00
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1500011121(Sett. of B/ No0.3687 dt. 10.07.2021 911.40
Sona
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1800492057 490.00
100053287 | 9/14/2022 | 1800607627 1,200.00
100101618 | 12/31/2022 | uncashed cheque transfer to unpaid g/1 7,434.43
Total 766,105.54

Impact of Non-Compliance:
e Overstatement of Liabilities: Failure to transfer unpaid cheques results in an inflated
liability balance in the financial statements.

e Understatement of Income: Delayed recognition of income leads to financial
misstatements in the reporting period when these cheques should have been
derecognized.
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e Policy and Control Weakness: Non-adherence to internal policies and standard
practices weakens financial discipline and accountability.

Recommendation:
¢ Immediate Transfer of Unpaid Cheques: BPCL should review and transfer all
cheques that have remained unpaid for over two years to the Liabilities No Longer
Required account, following the established internal practice.

e Strengthen Review and Approval Processes: A structured review of unpaid cheques
should be conducted at the end of each reporting period, and upon approval, the
necessary accounting adjustments should be made.

o Enforce Policy Compliance: BPCL should ensure strict adherence to the written
policy regarding stale cheques, including maintaining an updated register for unpaid
cheques to track their status.

e Improve Internal Controls: The finance team should be trained on the importance of
timely transfers and maintaining compliance with both policy and standard practices
to ensure accurate financial reporting.

Management Response:
The observations regarding the unpaid cheque’s have been sorted and transferred to the appropriate
General Ledger as per AMMRR 2016.

The details are attached herewith in Annexure I for your kind perusal, hence the observation may
kindly be dropped.

The meino has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge management’s response and confirm that the unpaid cheques have been appropriately
transferred to the correct General Ledger as per AMMRR 2016. With the issue resolved, this
observation is considered closed.

Compliance to be made by management:

To prevent recurrence, management should maintain strict adherence to policies and internal
procedures for handling unpaid cheques. This observation has been moved to MAR 1 for ongoing
monitoring in future audits.
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8. NON-COMPLIANCE WITH SUPPLY RULES FOR MV/HV AND LV CONNECTIONS
[1.2.85]

As per the Supply Rules for MV /HV (Clause 31.4) and Supply Rules for LV (Clause 30.4), the
guidelines state that:

“The supply to a customer who has not made payment for two consecutive bills shall be disconnected
by issuing a prior disconnection notice. Such notice may also be served in the bill of the customer.”
This policy is designed to ensure that overdue payments are promptly addressed, and power
supply is disconnected for defaulters as a means of enforcing payment.

The non-compliance with these guidelines was noted in the previous year’s audit, and the
management had provided assurances that such issues would not occur in the future. Based
on these assurances, the findings were moved to MAR Part 1.

During this audit, we re-examined the issue by investigating the disconnection status of new
defaulters from 2024 for P/ling, Samtse and Thimphu. Out of 3,127 new defaulting customers
identified, 2,123 customers had their electricity connections not disconnected as required,
indicating a recurrence of the same issue noted in the previous year.

Breakdown of defaulting customers with dues over 60 days:

Division No. of Defaulting | No. of Customers No. of Customers
Customers - Disconnected Not Disconnected
P/ling 145 33 112
Samtse 56 1 55
Thimphu 2,207 485 1722
Total 2408 519 1889

Details of Defaulting Customers with Dues Over 180 Days:

Division No. of Defaulting | No. of Customers No. of Customers
Customers Disconnected Not Disconnected
Thimphu 719 485 234
Total 719 485 234

Failure to adhere to the supply rules regarding the disconnection of electricity for defaulters

results in:

e Accumulation of Unpaid Dues: The overdue payments continue to increase,
impacting cash flow.

e Increased Financial Risk: If not promptly addressed, these outstanding dues expose
the company to potential financial losses.

Recommendations:
We recommend that management take steps to ensure compliance with the supply rules for
disconnections. This will help address the recurring instances of non-compliance, mitigate the

risk of increased dues, and improve the overall financial health of the company.
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Management Response:

We acknowledge the audit observations regarding the disconnection of defaulting customers
in accordance with the Supply Rules for MV/HV and LV connections

Due to the large customer base, it is a challenging task to disconnect all the defaulting customers at one
80. The process of connection and disconnection of customers is a continuous process and therefore,
there is a time lag.

For the specific observation made by the Audit, the responses are furnished for review by the Audit.
ESD Thimphu

a. Dues more than 60 days

ESD Thimphu is working rigorously by disconnecting more than 400 defaulting customers every
month. Since we do not disconnect on government/local holidays including Saturdays or Sundays, or
a day preceding a holiday” as per supply rules, leads to the accumulation of dues. Most of the dues as
of 31st December 2024 have been cleared within January and February 2025. Nevertheless, ESD
Thimphu is committed to disconnecting all the defaulters as per the supply rule.

b. Dues more than 180 days

The 45% of the outstanding amount pertains to one customer at Bjemina Industry. The customer was
not disconnected because the customer was allowed a staggered payment option. Out of 234 not
disconnected customers, 68 customers are under the AMI pilot project implementation scheme which
we didn’t disconnect due to the AMI project being implemented very recently. 47 customers have paid
after the disconnection report was submitted. 83 customers out of 187 have dues amount less than Nu.
1,000.00 which is in rural areas and the cost of expenditure is higher to visit to rural areas for
disconnections and then reconnections. We have to wait for the next billing to make a visit for the
disconnection. ESD Thimphu shall disconnect the remaining customers within February 2025.

ESD Samtse

Dues more than 60 days

All the dues as of 315t December 2024 have been cleared within January and February 2025. Henceforth,
ESD Samtse shall adhere to the supply rule and disconnect all the defaulting customers.

ESD Phuentsholing

We would like to clarify that the list of defaulting customers with dues exceeding 60 days, as reflected
in the audit report, pertains to the billing period of 31 December 2024. As of the date of this response,
all such customers have been disconnected, as evidenced by the SAP ERP records provided in
Annexure-1. Furthermore, the majority of these customers have had their supply reinstated upon
payment of the required disconnection charges.

BPC s fully committed to enforcing timely disconnections in line with the Supply Rules, the immediate
disconnection of customers upon reaching exactly 60 days of overdue payment presents challenges due
to the geographical dispersion of customers, particularly in rural areas. The travel time required to reach
rural locations results in some unavoidable delays. Ve have to wait for the next billing to make a visit
for the disconnection. Nevertheless, BPC accords the highest priority to this task and remains steadfast
in its efforts to minimize any delays in disconnection to mitigate financial risks and ensure compliance.
We sincerely appreciate the audit observations and recommendations and will continue to strengthen
our processes to address these concerns effectively.

Attachment: Annexure I, ESD, Thimphu
Annexure II, ESD, Samtse
Annexure III, ESD, Phuentsholing

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):
There are practical difficulties in implementation of disconnection of defaulting customers and
challenges especially with the large customer base and in rural areas. The reports on disconnections are

Bhutan Power Corporation Limited

being reviewed regularly by the Manﬂgement It was also informed tluzt the i issue is mainh y with the LV Ve
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amount that is to be collected from the customer bill resulting in not disconnecting the customers. The
Department will be strictly monitoring the disconnections every month and checking whether an
improvement is brought in accordance with the supply rules. A year end report of disconnections citing
the reasons of difficulties and the improvements made will be provided to RAA. Considering the above,
it is requested to drop the observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge management’s response and the challenges faced in implementing timely
disconnections due to the large customer base and geographical dispersion in rural areas. Given
management’s commitment to monthly monitoring, improved compliance with supply rules, and the
submission of a year-end report, this observation is considered addressed.

Compliance to be made by management:

To ensure continued compliance, management should implement the planned monitoring measures and
provide a comprehensive year-end report detailing challenges and improvements. The effectiveness of
these actions will be reviewed in the subsequent audit.
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9. INACCURACIES IN ASSET CUSTODIANSHIP RECORDS IN SAP [7.2.11]

9.1. Missing Custodian Details in SAP

We have noted that the following assets were missing custodian details in SAP, meaning no
responsible individual has been assigned to these assets. Missing or incorrect custodianship
details weakens control over assets, increasing the risk of misplacement or unauthorized use.

Asset Code Description o Physical Quantity
4400419 | Conference Revolving Chair R.C 63 (Brown Color) 1
44003438 | Revolving Chair with Low Back ak
Recommendations:

1. Update Custodian Details in SAP:

o Assign the correct custodians to the above-mentioned assets in SAP.

e Conduct a company-wide review to ensure custodianship is updated across all
divisions.

Management Response:

For the Asset code 4400419 Conference Revolving chair, this asset has been auctioned off vide
notesheeti19/BPC/Asset/CEO/2020-2023/379 dated 20.11.2023. SAP has no record of this asset since
it’s been already disposed. Therefore, we request you to kindly drop this observation.

Similarly, For Asset code 44003438, Revolving chair, this asset has been transferred to GYL_PR_SAM
with new code 44005849 vide BPC/DS/DCD/CWD/RS-12/2020/230 dt. July 20, 2021. Asset 44003438
has been deactivated since 2021 in SAP. For cross verification we recommend to check the PVR of GPO
Samtse. Therefore, we would request you to kindly verify in SAP to consider the details.

Additional Management Responses (Post-Exit):

GPO, Jamtsholing acknowledges the observation made by the auditors, and the same has been rectified
and updated in the system. There was an overlook in entering the new asset code. The new asset code
for the revolving chair with a low back is 44005849.

The asset code for Conference Revolving Chair R.C. 63 (Brown Color) (Asset Code 4400419) was
overlooked to assign the right asset code. The right Asset Code for Conference Revolving Chair R.C. 63
(Brown Color) is now 44005707 and the same is updated in the system as well as the physical
verification report.

The physical verification of assets was once again carried out diligently, and the updated PVR was
furnished after cross-checking with SAP as per the recommendation (as attached and submitted to
finance).

Further, GPO Jamtsholing assures that in the future, physical verification shall be strictly
implemented, PVR shall be tallied with the system (SAP), and thereafter, ensure that accurate reports
shall be produced.

Since all recommendations pointed out by the auditors have been implemented and action taken, we
request to kindly drop this observation.
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The memo has been treated as settled:

We acknowledge management’s clarifications and the corrective actions taken to address the identified
issues. The transfer of Asset Code 44003438 (Revolving Chair with Low Back) has been verified, and
its updated asset code is properly recorded in SAP. Hence, this observation is considered addressed.

Compliance to be made by management:

Houwever, the discrepancy regarding the Conference Revolving Chair R.C 63 (Brown Color) (Asset
Code 4400419) appearing in the 2024 Physical Verification Report (PVR) despite being auctioned off
raises concerns about asset tracking accuracy. Management has attributed this to human error during
the PVR process and has committed to corrective measures. To prevent recurrence, it is essential that
future PVRs are thoroughly reviewed and free from such errors. This observation has been moved to
MAR Part I for continued monitoring in subsequent audits to ensure proper review and accuracy in
asset verification.
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9.2. Mismatch Between Physical Verification Report and SAP Custodian Records

A discrepancy was noted between the physical verification report and the SAP asset records,
where the recorded custodian in SAP does not match the one reflected in PVR for the
following assets. Mismatched records make it difficult to track assets, causing potential delays
in audits and reconciliations.

Asset Code Description =~ Physical Quantity
44007105 | Manager's Table (1600x800x750mm 1
44007149 | Revolving Chair- Half Back 1

Recommendations:

1. Update Custodian Details in SAP:

o Assign the correct custodians to the above-mentioned assets in SAP.
e Conduct a company-wide review to ensure custodianship is updated across all
divisions.

Management Response:

During the physical verification of moveable assets 2024 the above assets were found to be under the
custodian of Mr. Karma Melam (30003353) for sl. no. (1) and Mr. Chimmi Rinzin (30002458) for sl.
no. (2). However, the asset custodian were not updated in SAP then.

Howeuver, the asset custodian has been updated in SAP now, this office would like to request the
statutory auditors to kindly drop the observation.

The memo has been treated as settled:
We acknowledge that the asset custodianship records have been successfully updated in SAP. Hence,
this observation is considered addressed.

Compliance to be made by management:

Given the potential for similar issues to arise in the future, we have moved this finding to MAR I for
monitoring in future audits. We recommend that management ensures regular reviews and updates of
asset custodianship information in SAP to maintain accurate and complete records.
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Bhutan Power Corporation Limited
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BHUTAN POWER CORPORATION LIMITED

Yarden Lam, P.O. Box. 580

Thimphu Bhutan

www.bpc.bt )



